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USMANIA GLASS SHEET FACTORY LTD
REGiSTERED OFFICE : KALURGHAT I/A

POST : CHANDGAON, CHATTOGRAM_ 4212

Brief Resume of Directors
Nominated Directors of UGSFL
1)

2)

3)

4)

Mr' Md' Mostafizur Rahman-Additional s991e!ary (Grade-l), Government Republic ofBangladesh and chairman, BCIC & chairman UGSFL io-r*, Board.Mr' Md' Amin uI Ahsan, Joint Secretary Gove*-"nt Republic of Bangladesh andDirector(commercial), BCIC & Director or ucsFr nominated by BCICMd' Billal Hossain, Joint Secretary Government Republic of Bangladesh and
?:1""L"._Grnance), BCIC & Director of UCSf,t, Nominated by BCIC.Md' selim uddin,. Joinl secretary G-ovgryment t"p"url" or Bangladesh and Director(Nominated By Ministry of Industrils) & Director or ucsFr.

5) Engr. Bidyut Kumar Biswas-Managing Director. UGSFL
Engr' Bidyut Kumar lIyt,-!.sc.Engg.(chemicaD has joined on llth February,2O2O as theManaging Director & cEo of usmania dla:s Sheet fuiiry rta. @GSFL), chauogram, accordingto an official statement. Prior to his joining, Engr. Bidyut Kumar Biswas *u. tt 

" 
Managing Directorof chhatak cemenr 

-company Lto.riCcr), chi;i"k, srroumgorl-. After completing theB.Sc.Engg(Chemical) from Bangladesh UnirersitS.-OiErgir"eririg A fectrnorogy@UET), hestarted his career |t \y.naphuli Paper Mills Limiteolrrur), chandraghona, Rangamati HillDistrict, BCIC, trnder lVlinistry of Industries, as Assistant Engineer(Ch#i;;ij in 19gg. He waspromoted there from Assistant Engineer(Chernical) to Generat Manager(op*rt;;. ;; ffi H:Managing Director in Different i-ndustries of BCIC such as chittagong chemical complexLimited(cccl), Barabtyndl, chittagong from Nov'2 016-oct'2017, chittagong urea FertilizerLimited(cuFl), Rangadia,^chittagon-g from oct'2017-oct'2019 and Chhata? cement companyLimited(cccl), chhatak, Sylhet f.otn o.t'2019-10th nevzozo.He completed Diploma course inPulp and Paper Technology from NTNU(Norwaygian university of Science and rechnology) in2000 and completed the course of Environmental-iollution controlr in purp ano paper Technologyin Sweden in 2002. He also got training on trnouution in productioi iyrt"rl under AsianProductivity organizatiolgPo[l Tokyo, Wuoin2}tl. He played a key roleto produce pulp fromgreen jute in Karnaphuli Paper Mills Limited.(KPML). o"ed the tenure oirri, service life, hevisited many countries for official purpoy lil: bhina];aiu, sorth Korea. He was the Secretary ofInstitution of Engine"ers, BangladestrfuEn;, crraniruirr"ru sru-centre and also the secretary ofBangladesh chemical societyfchanarrgt ora sub-ceitre more than 10(ten) years. He is a memberof Institution of Engineers, Banglaaesnfinn;, me-b.r oinanghaesh itremicat Society@cS) andmember of National productivity Organization(NpO).

0)

Mr' Md' Hemayet Ullah is the Director of UGSFL. He was-born in a village of Shahibanir Hat,Hatiya, Noakhali on 1st June'1964. He completed his n.com6tons) & na.coilin Accounting fromChittagong university. Then he successfully."*pi.t.oCrrr.tered Accountancy course. During his



professional career,he was the Regional lncharge(1993-2000) in Delta LiQlnsurance co' Ltd' and

GM(2000-2005), Executive Director(200S-IOOZ;, l.: Executive Director(20g7-2009) &

DMD(2009-2010) in Meghna Life Insurice Co. LiO. aser that he joined in Fareast Islami Life

Insurance co. Ltd. as Additional Managing Director (2OlO-2Oll) and now he is.the chief Executive

Director (cEo) or ihu-t Co*pury. Durid his Job iareertre got several training llke "Znd Asian

Conference on Micro Insuranie" by Micri Insurance Academy, Mumbai, Ildia-, o'Micro Insurance

for the NGO Borrower and Lower Group" by Bangladesh Insurance Academy, "Accounting

Guideline,, by Oxfam, Hongkong and "bapa.itv g"ilahg and Leadership.- Development" by

Bangladesh Red cres# Soci"ety. Ife is involved inmany social orgarizations like "Dwip Unnoyan

ShoigstfraqNGO)", 
;Bangladesh Red Cresent Societlr", *C.A.Chatro Parishod" etc'

lndependent Directors:

Dr. Md. Fakhrul Islam is an Independent Director of UGSFL. He completed his B.Sc. Engineering

degree from Bangladesh University of Engineering & Technology (BUET):Later he obtained M'Sc'

and ph.D. degree on Metallic & cera#c Mate:rial Science from the University of Manchester

Institute of Science & Technology(IMlST), UK. He is a member of TMS(Materials, Metals &

Minerals Society), IEB, Bangladesh, Bangladesh ceramic Society@cS) and.is a fellow of BSME'

He got chancellor award rrom guEr and-obtained commonwealth scholarship to undertake M'Sc'

and Ph.D. prografirme at UMIS! UK. Different research grants were-completed under his

supervision like BrrTC, BUET, IBBL Bank Ltd. Ministry of Education etc' Now he is the Professor

and Head of Glass & Ceramic Engineering Department in Bangladesh University of Engineering &

Technology (BUET).

Mr. Md. Rafiqul Islam,FCA is an Independent Director of uGSFL. He completed his B'com(Hons)

& M.Com on eccounting from phata University. Later he successfully completed Chartered

Accountancy course from-Howlader yunus & co. and then achieved chartered Accountant degree'

Now he is a Fellow of Chartered Accountants under Institute of Chartered Accountants of

Bangladesh (ICAB). H" *u, the nominated Director(Finance & Commercial) of BCIC from 2008 to

2013. He Joined as Independent Director in UGSFL on 15-11-2014 for the first term and

re-nominated for the Zndterm on l8-t1-2017. Now he is the partner of Shyful Shamsul & Co'' a

Chartered Accountant flrm in Dhaka'

9) Mr. Md. Zarzis Afi, Director(Indppendent)' UGSFL ---
Mr. Md. ZarzisAli is an IndepenO"rrt]itJi* 3oi*.0 UGSFL on 27-05-2020' He completed his

B.Sc. Engineering (Mechanical) from Rajshahi Engineenng col]9se unier Rajshahi University in

1984. He joined BCIC as an Assistanringine.. oi 6tt eprl tOa: in Urea Fertilizer Factory Ltd

(UFFL), Ghorashal, Narshingdi. lelendeLd service in difflerent important & responsible post in

different factories & institute of BCIC such as Addl.Chief Engr. of Urea Fertilizer Factory Ltd

(1IFFL), Ghorashal, Narshingdi, Addl.Chief Engr. of TICI(Training Institute for Chemical

Industries, GM, Maintenance d Technical service D=irition of BCIC head office, Managing Director

of Shahjalal nertlizeiractory Ltd (SFCL) during his service period in BcIc. He organized Different

types of training program on different sector whlch helped to running the factories/office efficiently'

He was the first ,ouriuglrrg director of Stratr3atal Fertiliier Factory Ltd. He gop-nleted his successful

service life from BCIC on 2017. Now he is working as consultant of Shahjalal Fertilizer company

Ltd (SFCL).
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USMANIA GLASS SHEET FACTORYLTD
REGISTERED OFFICE : KALURGHAT I/A

POST : CHANDGAON, CHATTOGRAM- 4212

NOTICE OF THE 34th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
This is for information of all honourable sha_reholders that, the 34th Annual General Meeting of Usmania
Glass sheet lagtgry Limited will be held virrually (in digitat platform) ii i+tn o"i" a"r;ioio,
Thursday, at 10.30 a.m. to transact the following busineis.
Agenda:
1 . To confirm the minutes of the 3 3rd Annual General Meeting held on 20th Decemb er, 2019 .2- To consider,.a{op!9d approve the Audited Accounts for G year ended 30th June'2020, Reports of the

Auditors and the Directors thereon.
3. To discuss dividend issue for the financial year 2019-2020.
4. To nominate/elect Directors.
5. To appoint auditors for the year 2020-202r and,to fix their remuneration.6. To appoint auditors for the Compliance on Corporate Governance Code for the Financial year 2020-2OZl

and to fix their remuneration
7. To discuss any other matter of the company with the permission of the chair.

Dated: 0711212020 By the order of the Board of Directors

A*
(Md. Shahadath Hossain)

Company Secretary

Notes:
1' Share transfer register of the company will remain closed on 24-ll-2020 i.e. the record day. The shareholders

whose names appeared in the register of the company/ depository register under Central Depository System(CDS)
on Record date would be eligible to atte\d /participate and vote at the AGM(Annual GeneraiMeeting).2' Persuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's revised order no: SEC/SRMIC /04-Z3l/25,
dated: 08-07-2020, AGMwill be held virhrally( using digital platform) which will be conducted via live telecast.3' To login into the system, the shareholders need to put their 16-digit Benificiary owners(Bo) number/Folio
number and other credentials as a proof of their identity which wilt be notified latei on Link of the meeting. The
login details through virtual process wilt be notified to the respective shareholders email addresses. nesidei, full
lgsinrryicipation process will be notified at company's website www.ugsflbd.com.

4' l(one) director will be elected at the above meeting from amongst "Group-8" Shareholders. Shareholders
willing to contest for the post are requested to collect Nomination Paper from -ornpurry 

Secretary and to submit
the same on or before 10.00 a.m. of 14/1212020. otherwise nomination paper will nlt bL accepted.5) Persuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission,s notification no:
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208l&dmin/81, datedr 20-06-20|8,PDF copy of Arurual Report Z1tg-2121will be
sent to the e-mail address of the shareholders who have Bo account in the CDS on the record date 24-ll-2ozo.
The Annual Report will also be available at the company's website www.ugsflbd.com.

6) The shareholders will be able to submit their questions/comments electronically to inlb@ugsflbd.com or
ugsfl.md@gmail.com or shakawat.bimgggg@gmail.com.

7) A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy in hislher stead. TheProxy form duly stamped must be submitted at the registered office of the company or Scan copy to the above
mail address (considering COVID- 19 epidemic) at least 4s(forty eight) hours before tie time fixed 

'dr ;" ;"'*iirg.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
"Bismiilahir-Rahmanir Rahi rn"

Honorable Shaleholders,
,\ssalamualaikunr.
The Board of Directors and n"ryself are delighted to welcome you all in the 34th AGM (Annual General

Meeting) of lJsnrania Glass Sheet Factory Limited and to present at yolt the Directors Report tbr the

Financial Year 2019-2020 together with the Audited Financial Statetnents and Auditors Report for the year

elded 3Oth JLure'2020 for your approval and considcration. The Directors Report. the Audited F-inancial

Statenrent ancl the Auclitors Reporl were recommended by the Board of Directors of the corlpany oll

29-10-2020 fbr placing in the 34th AGM(Annual General Meeting) fbr kind approval of the shareholders.

Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Limited established in 1959 at kalurghat industrial area, the porl city

Chattogram anci started its commercial production in 1961. After liberation rn''ar, it was incorporated with

Bangladesh Cl-remical Industries Corporatior-r (BCIC) under Ministry of Industries (MOI) and it was the only

sheet glass inclLrstry in Banglaclesh. So, it is called the pioneer of glass industries in Bangladesh. As it is a

state owned glass industry in Bangladesh, it has been trying to fulfill the demancl o1'Sheet Glass in a

reasonable price with a minirnum cost for the general mass frorn 1961. The company of{loaded its share in

public sector in 1987 and enlisted in Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd(DSEL)in the same year w'here 5 I % Share

is owned by BCIC and lgok Share is offloaded in the Public sector. Considering offloaded year 1987, fiscal

year 2019-2020 is the 34th production year of UGSFL. The Company produced 109.69 lac sft Sheet Glass

during the flscal year 2019-2020 towards target production of 1,15 lac sft being 15.65% of production target

and.54.57 % of the company's installed capacity. During the fiscal year 2019-2020, 92.89 lac sft Sheet Glass

were sold against the target of 145 lac sft that is 61.069/o of target sales.

Due to worlclu,,itle pandemic of COVID- 19(Corona Virus) as well as in Bangladesh. the whole collntry was

lockecl dou.n from 26-03-2020 to 3l -05-2020. At that tirne production was stopped bv tnaintaining heating

gp position of the furnace. After withdrarvl of lock dor,vn by goverment. proclLrction 'ul'as 'started tiom

01-06-2020 and production again stoppecl corr,pletell, lrom 23-06-2020 due to sudclen drastically fire

accident. As a resttlt, target production and sales u,ere rrot possible to achieve.

Besides, Usrnania's plants and machineries are of 60 r,ears o1d (Forecault Process) and thc iand area is not

adequate enough t6 establish a new modem technology based sheet glass industrrv "lhrotrgh this old

technology basecl plant and inadecluate land area, the company is not propetly able tcr prodllce sheet glass to

meet the rising dernand of sheet glass in the country. So, the Board of Direltors is irying lo esiablish a new

ccntainer glass plant project in UGSFL premises considering the dernaud of coutairier glass in the lr'orld at

present. For thed pulpose, a tender proceclure has already been contpleted anci one consttltirrg firm has been

selected fbr the "N{arket Survey and E,r:onorlic Feasibility Studv'. After getting theil repoit. the tleri task

will be done :rs .qr,ot-r as possi'cle. It is cxpecteil that it u'ill be a profitable and l'ianle plo.jer:t in titture.

Segment rvise or Product rvise pert-ol"mance:

fhe ConTpanr, prcrJuces 05 category :ilie et glass r,,,hich dctailed pcrfot:nattces art: shovitr as below:

Shcct (,ilass
Productior{ in tac SIt) Zltrin hasis S::rles(in lac Sft) ?rtinr basis
2A t 9-2$2tj 701 8-2*19 2019...2$20 2018-2019

2rnr-r.r 4.16 13.68 4.16 1.+ 1t)

3mrtr 45.61 70.36 15.32 78.19
4mna .tr8.5 6 s3.3 5 38.99 7 5.1)6

5rlm r 0.95 r6.49 4.11 20.-/6

6rr-rr-n 0.1 I 0.o I 0.o6

Total 109.69 r 53.8t8 92"89 1E9.07

ffil
q#*#



ni&and Concerns:
Risli;sessment and mitigation is an integral part of any business. The risk factors are business risk, market risk,
technological risk and environmental risk. Fumace-l-was shut down from 12-06-20lg to till now for roughweather and increasing of excess stock comparing stock capacity. Considering shut down "r n.""."liproduction, the production target in the finaniiut yi* 2org-2020 was 145 lac sft u"a url", p];r"-;;;;
materials procured in the said fiscal year. But due to COVID-I9 Pandemic and lock down situation, company
was not able to achieve the target production and sales. on the other hand, the Competitors in the market such
as PHP Glass Industries, Nasir Glass Industries, MEB Sheet Glass Industries and AB Glass Industries Ltd. areproducing high quality glass with modern technolsgy and selling glass as the price of UGSFL. The two peer
glass industries named PHP & Nasir Glass reduced tleir sales prlcJ for several times in the ,uia rrrur"iri |.*which compelled UGSFL to reduce it's sales price as well as aliowing discount/commission from time to time.
So, UGSFL has to face a.tfueat in marketing of sheet glass. Besides this, for CovID-l9 situation, economic
condition of the world is in great trouble. So,Bank inteiest rate dropped and other fixed and variable expenses
such as gas, electricity bill etc, increased which leads to increase tli los or the comfany. consequently, thefactory incurred loss due to production cost increased over sales price. prompt decisions of the Board,appropriate directives and comprehensive effortl of the factory management are ongoing. At present, theCompany Board are trying to overcome the situation by implementing a\ew containeiGlass plant project atUGSFL factory premises. The Board of Directors expect it ut it wiil ue a profitable business ror increasing
demand of container glass in the country as well as in the world. As part oi that already a consultant frrm isappointed to complete the "Market Survey andEconomic Feasibility Study". It is expecteithat after completing
the survey, the project implementation task will start T :oon as plssible. The company plants of Mehogoni,
Mango, Neem and other varities of plant were planted in different places of UGSpt considering environmental
effect of natural disasters/calamities. on the other hand, outside drains adjacent to factory, inside drains, roads,
debris -were cleaned by the labourers of the environment section or udsFr so that ."*.rug" system worksproperly in the factory as well as outside the factory.
Discussion of cost of Goods Sold , Gross profit Margin and Net profit Margin:

r"*@-L
effi

Total Sales (Gross)
Less: VAT, Commission
Net Sales
Less: Cost ofGoods Sold

Less: Admin, Selling & other Expenses ,
Add: Other Income

Less: Contributory Profit participation Fund(CppF) ;

Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax
Less: Provision for Tax: Current year(g2C) 

:
Deferred Taxl[ncome)
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax :

Continuity of Extra-ordinary Gain/Loss:

luring the financial year 2019-2020, the company has earned tk. 31.93 lac as interest income by depositing into bank.Related Party Transaction:

1]! ryllleld,parry.,tmnsactions have been made on.commercial basis.by.following ppR and other relatedg:y^.99?lF?f:tl1 Plllilg,of narty transactions an{_tlell ii,rii,orrfilp ir,afi"to;;a"h?; #en rtisc.sserr ,nrrer
government eazette. Details of parry ta*a;i'r.o.n^s ildihgi';;l;ii"rrffip iJrai#note no:45 olthe financial Statrim"rlt" "-.-^."1 AS onr{ rtrDa h-ave been discuiied undeinote no:45 olthe financial Staidmeilt. as pei iaS and IFRS.

:i.1",: l1l"endance and.Remuneration of Directors in Board Meetings:
The .board.comprises ch-airman, 3 directors nominated
nomtnated by Mlntstry of Industries (MOI)- I direcror el,
I ne Doaro comDrlses chalrman. 3 directors nominated by BCIC including Managing DirecLor, I directornominated bv Ministrv ortnaiiiiiies (Moii. I iiirqi'ror ii."i'"aiifi.'iiiirJriqf+;, dE i?rl.pend.nt dire*ors.
?xl*-:ql^fil:1.^,:.l"ysli ?fil;r_Pi, gfls#i'E,i;id, rir+dd''1i.,'ere herd. Each Director sot rk.5000/- as

r rrtr uuaru somDrlses cn-alrrnan. J dlrectors nominated by BCIC includins Manasinominated bv Ministrv ortnaiiiiiies (Moii. I iii'qi'ro' ii."i'"aiifi.'iiiiiJriiifa.lffis'During the Financiat.v*elizp19:)"0)'o,tZisili Eipiid r;r;!t,idr'#.r. held. Each Diremuneration for each Board Meeting. rtrb-detuitJ ,etuiej'riijiia'i,aiitri;. B"o;;A ;f
nominated bv l\zlinistrv orlnaiiiiiiJs (Mdii'i iii'1i#!i."'ltai!',i.'1ffilf+Ylilft]ig,HJii?,'fJ;,'.,?#,:'S:During the Financiafi;ai ro$:)"0)'o.tZisir, Eipiid. r;r;!t,id''#;; r;;la._E;;ri^ii#di;, got rk.5000/_ as
;?llffif#:?l"f:;;nljLTq,y::,llgll:-a*Etq;.'"r;d-il;ia'i,,r."t,ie. e'ouid 6'd'b'ii!.to,",. rheir period.

1685.63
399.32
1286.31
2306.94

(1020.63)
30s.40
31.93

(1294.t0)

(t2e4.to)
7.91

(47.26)
(12s4.7s)

3367.73
937.25

2430.48
3266.97
(836.4e)
376.0t
tt7.oo

(1oes.50)

(109s.50)
15.28

(28.75)
(1082.03)

270s.60
62s.04

2080.s6
2151.20
(7o.64)
329.56
106.87

(2e3.2e)

(2e3.2e)
13.12

(31.67)
(238.02)

attendance and theii rem-""erutibi, iiSin,i.rid bA"*l their period,



Name & Designation Remarks

Mr- Md. Haiul Quaium
Chairman

27-08-2O19 to
24-O2-2020 o6

o5 25,OOO.OO Retired on
ot-o3-2020

Vfr. Vfa. Mostafi-zur Rahrnan
Chairman

2|-06-2020 to
2t-06-2020

01 5,OO0.OO Appointed on
o2-o3-2020

Mr. Md. ArninUl A] san
Director(Comrnercial)

27-O8-2O19 to
21-06-2020

06 06 30,oo0.oo

Mr. Md. Billal Hossain
Direcctor(Finance)

27-08-2019 to
2t-06-2020

o6 06 30,ooo.oo

Mr. Md. SelimUddin
DirectorCNomi nated BY MOI)

27-O8-2O19 to
21-06-2020

o6 o5 25,OOO.OO

Vtr. Vta, HerrraYet Ullah
Director @lected
Shareholders)

by
27-08-2019 to

2t-06-2020
o6 o1 5,OOO.OO

Mr. Md. Rafiqul Islam,FCA
Tndeoendent Director

27-08-2019 ro
2t-06-2020

o6 o5 25,OOO.OO

Pr"f"ss* P.. Md. Fakhrul Islam
Independent Director

27-O8-2O19 to
2t-06-2020

o6 o5 25,OOO.OO

Md- Zarzis A1i
Independent Director

27-O8-2O19 to
2r-06-2020

06 o6 30,ooo.o0

Engr. Md. Moazzem l:lossan
Manasins Director

27-O8-2O19 ro
24-Ot-2020 o6

o4 20,ooo.oo Transferred on
rt-02-2020

eogr. eiayot I(umar Biswas
Manasing Director

24-O2-2O2O to
2t-06-2020

o2 10,ooo.oo Appointed on
rt-02-2020

Total Remuneration 2.30.OO0.OO

Financial Reporting Standards/Directors Declaration as to Statutory Information :

In connection with the preparation and presentation ofthe financial statements, the directors also report that :

a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company present fairly its state of affairs,

the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity'

b) Proper Books of accounts have been maintained'

c) Appropriate accounting policies have been applied and maintained

statements based on reasonable and prudent judgment'
preparation of financial

d) International Accounting standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards(IFRS) have been

followed in preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed'

e) The system of internal control is effectively monitored'

0 The significant deviations from the last years operating results of the company have been highlighted

in the annual report and reasons thereofhave been explained.

A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from abusive actions by, or in the interest of

controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and have effective means of redress:

UGSFL have to comply the " corporate Governance code" guided by BSEC(Bangladesh securities &

Exchange Commission) as it is u prrUti" limited company and the company tries its best to meet the best

practice with highest siandards for applying the laws. The company are fully committed to the fair and

equal treatment to all kinds of shareholders and make every effort to ensure that minority shareholders are

focusing their interest and influence to the company by proposing items in the agenda of the general

meeting which are for genuine business purposes. The reflection are seen in the Annual General Meeting

that they have access to any and all information relating to matters for which the management is

accountable for. These activities are ensuring for the minority shareholders to meet the lawfu1 interest'
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Kejoperating and Financiar Data of preceding 05 (Iive) years:
Key operating and Financial Data of preceding O5(five) years are as follows:
Other Financial Performance

Financial Performance

f inancial Result and Appropriations:

Distribution of Profit and Declaration of Dividend from Equal izationReserve:

f:::::9'j:1, ::"""yi., *" "gTnanv ^has 
incurred a loss during the financial year under review. Nodividend is declared in the financial year zots-zozouv uCsri 0""-t ,n";##;ft;ffi#:l;li3

condition no 6.2(b) of BSEC Notification no-BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-15g/20glAdmin/gl, dated:20-06-2018. The 05(five) years dividend payment position are as follows:

2019-2020
(Taka in Lac)

2018-2019
(Taka in Lac)

20t7-2018
(Taka in Lac)

2016-2017
(Taka in Lac)

2015-2016
(Taka in

Lac)
Authorized Capital s000.00 5000.00 5000.00 5000.00 5000.00
Paid Up Capital 1741.09 1741.09 1582.81 1438.92 1308.1 ITotal Shareholders Equity 1609.61 17349 31 18756.45 1431.79 2226.22Net Asset value Per
Share(NAV)

92.45 99.65 1 18.s0 9.99 17.02

Earnings Per Share (EpS) (7.21) (6.21) 1.50) (5.48) (6.0s)Net Operating Cash Flows
Per Share(NOCFPS)

(5.8e) (1.06) (0.2e) (7.50)

Particulars 2019-2020
(Taka in Lac)

2018-2019
(Taka in Lac)

2017-2018
(Taka in Lac)

2016-2017
(Taka in Lac)

2015-2016
{Taka in Lne)Total Sales(Gross) 1685.63 3367.73 2705.60 2298.78 )401 01Less: VAT, Commission 399.32 937.25 625.04 491.13 519.40Net Sales 1286.31 2430.48 2080.56 1 807.65 1881 .61I ess: Cost of Goods Sold 2306.94 3266.97 2151.20 2455.79 2664.88Gross Profit(Loss) (1020.63) (836.49) (70.64) (648.14) (783.27\Less: Admin, Selling & other

Expenses
305.40 376.01 329.56 310.56 301.80

Add: Other lncome 31.93 t17.00 106.87 155.25
Gross Pro{itlloss 0294.10) (109s.s0) Qe3.2e) (803.45) (e10.09)Less: ContriUutory f.ont
Participation Fund(CppF)
Net ProfiU(Loss) Before Tax- (1294.10) (1095.50) Q93.29\ (803.45) (810.09)Less: Provision for Tax:
Current Year(82C)

7.91 15.28 13.12 1 1.78 12.94

Deferred Tax(Income) (47.26) (28.75) (68.40) (28.61) (31.67\
(t2s4.7s) (1082.03) (238.02) (788.43) (791.36)

Particulars 2019-2020
(Taka in Lac)

2018-2019
(Taka in Lac)

Net Profit Before Tax (1) OA

Net Profit After Tax (12,54,74,976)
{!p,95,49,953)

Dividend per ShareCastr
10,82,03,593)

Stock Dividend(Bonus Share)
A-ount of Stock DividenE(Bonus Sha$

(6.21)
Earnings Per Share (EpS) (7 21\
Net Operating Cai[- nows- per
Share(NOCFPS)

(5.8e) (1.06)

Particulars

274.98

Net Profit(Loss) after Tax



Particulars
2019-2020

(Taka in Lac)
2018-2019

(Taka in Lac)
2017-2018

(Taka in Lac)
2016-2017

(Taka in Lac)
20ts-2016

(Taka in Lac)

Dividend Per Share-Cash

Stock Dividend(Bonus Share) 10% 10% t0%

Interim Dividend

A statement ofutilization ofproceeds raised through public issues, right issues and/or through any other instruments:

No such matter occur during the year.

An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company goes for Initial Public

Offering(IPO), Repeat Public Offering(RPO), Right Share Offer(RSO), Direct Listing etc.:

No such matter occur during the year.

Significant variance that occurs between quarterly financial performance and annual financial statements:

Tf,ere is no significant variance occurs benveen quarterly accounts and audited financial statements 2019-2020.

A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer company's abitity to continue as a going concern:

There is no significant doubti of the company' ability to continue as a going concem.

Retirement and re-election of Directors:
i" t.r*r of company's Arlicle of Association 01(one) Director named Engr. Bidyut Kumar Biswas,

Managing Director, UGSFL , will retire from Group 'A' in this AGM. He is eligible for re-nomination from

Group 'A'. From Group 'B', 1 (One) elected Director named Mr. Md. Hemayet Ullah will also retire in this

AGM. 1 (One) Director will be elected in this AGM from Group 'B' Shareholders in place of him. Mr. Md.

Hemayet Ullah is eligible for re-election. Brief Resume & other information of Engr. Bidl'ut Kumar

Biswas and Mr. Hemayet Ullah are appended in the Directors Profile.
Appointment of Auditors :

f[5 A"Alt Firm M/s. Khan Wahab Shafiq Rahman & Co., Chartered Accountants were appointed as

Auditor of the Company in the 33rd AGM and they have completed audit of Accounts for the financial

year 2019-2020. The term of their appointment has expired and as per rule they are eligible for

ie-appointment as auditor for the year 2020-2021 . In the mean time, if any audit firm applies, the honorable

shareholders will decide the matter in this AGM.

Pattern Of Shareholding:
sl.
No.

Name Of the Directors Designation ' No ofShares
in FY: 2019-2020

%o of Paid uP
Capital

Di Includins Chairman of BCIC & MOI (Ministry of Industries)
A) Mr. Md. Mostafizur Rahman Chairman Nominated b1

BCIC/Govt

88,79,556 5lo

B) Mr. Md. SelimUddin Director Nominated by Govt,
MOI

c) Mr. Md.Amin Ul Ahsan Director Non-rinated by
BCIC/Govt

D) Mr. Md. Billal Hossain Director Nominated by
BCIC/Govt

E) Bidyrt Kumar Biswas Director Nominated bY
RCIC/Govt

Directors elected bv shareholders
F) Mr. Md. Hemayet Ullah Director. Representative of Fareast

Islami Life Insurance Co. Ltd.
3,48,395 20

Independent Directors
G) Mr. Md. Rafrqul Islam, FCA Director (lndependent)

H) Prof. Dr. Md. Fakhrul Trslam Director (Independent)

I Mr. Md. Zarzis Ali Director (lndependent)

Mr. Md. Shahadath Hossain



Nofe'#he chairman of the Board and Managing Director of uGSFL are holding different position.Shareholding l0o/" or more Voting Interest:
There is no Shareholders who holds trO% or more Shares in the company in the fiscal year 2019-2020.Management Discussion and Analvsis:
Board of Directors periodically assesses operational and financial performance. A detailed report on
discussion are explained from Note-l to 2.24.
Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR):
In the financial yeat 2019-20, an amount of tk.58,000 /-(fifty eight thousand) has been donated tomeritorious sons & daughters of the workers, staffs and officers of the Compury o, account of merit/study
scholarship' Besides this, annual sports & games, dramaand picnic *"r" u*gld as previous years for theworkers, staffs and officers in order to grow more inspiration among them in tie activities of the company
and to create congenial relationship among themselves.
Comparison with the Scenario of the Peer Industries Financial Performance and position as well as Cash Flows:The peer industries of Bangladesh such as Nasir Glass Industries Ltd., pHp Float Glass Industries Ltd.,MEB Sheet Glass Industries Ltd., AB Glass Industries Ltd. are not listed with the stock Exchanges.Moreover, the Annual Report of those companies a.re not found in their website by which the financialposition and performance compared. So, the financial position and performance as well as cash flowsscenario are not compared with the peer industries.
Nomination And Remuneration Committee (NRC):
In compliance with the corporate Governance i)ode,-the Board of Directors of uGSFL in its 330th BoardMeeting held on ll-r2-20r9' has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration committee (NRC) as asub-committee of the board with the following non-executive Directors:1) Mr. Md. Zaruis Ali(Independent Director; Chui.-un of NRC.2) Mr. Md. Amin ul Ahsan(Director-commerciar)-Member of NRC.
2 Ng.Md.Hemayet Ullah(Director)- Member of NRC.
The company Secretary of UGSFL will act as the Secretary of NRC which will be approved in theupcoming 34th AGM by the shareholders.
Gratitude:
on behalf of the Board of Directors and myself I express my heartfelt gratitude and thanks to all of you forattending this AGM and providing assistance and nice co-operation in the process of production, marketingand overall management of the company. I am particularly grateful to the Board of Directors of UsmaniaGlass Sheet Factory Limited, concerned Ministries ana oepJrtm."tr ortrrl co"t. oitrr" a"opre,s Republicof Bangladesh, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange clmmission (BSEC) and both the Dhaka andchittagong stock Exchanges for their co-operation that the company received from them in running theactivities successfully' I hope that honorable shareholders will also continue to extend similar support andco-operation in the days to come as before. The Board of Directors also appreciate the role of officers, staffsand workers of the company for their strenuous efforts for the cause of the Company,s interest. I alsoexpress my sincere gratitude to all the Shareholders, Dealers, Buyers, Bankers and Suppliers who also haveconhibuted a lot to the success of the Company.

May the Almighty Allah, the most mercifui, tretp us in building the company in good financial foundation,continuous progress, prosperity and deveropment for ail time ti come.
Thanks to all.

Ori behatf of the Board of Directors,

Md. Mostafizur Rahman
Chairman

UGSFL Company Board
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Report of the Audit Committee
Status and Purpose of the Audit Committee
Usmania Giasisheet Factory Limited has an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. The Audit
Committee assists the boardin assessing that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the company in order

to ensure a good monitoring system within the business.
Purpose of Audit Committee.
The-Audit Committee assists the Board of Directors in assessing that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of
the state of the affairs of the company and in ensuring a good monitoring system.

Constitution of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the company consists of 05(flve) members including one Independent Director. The Committee
has been reconstituted as 

-pei 
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's notification no-

BSEC/CMRRCDI2OO6-7581207/AdmiIV80, dated: 03 June 2018 on Corporate Governance Code as follows:
i. Mr. Md. Rafiqul Islam, FCA, Independent Director, UGSFL Company Board, Chairman of Audit Committee.
ii. Mr. Md. Amfu Ul Ahsan, Director (Commercial), BCIC & Director,UGSFL Company Board, Member of Audit

Committee.
iii. Mr. Mr. Md. HemayetUllah, Director, UGSFL Company, Board, Member of Audit Committee.
iv. Mr. S.M. Sohel Ahmed, General Manager, Audit Division, BCIC, Head of Internal Audit of Audit Committee.
v. Engr. Bidyuit Kumar Biswas, Managing Director, UGSFL, Member of Audit Committee.

Actil-ities of the audit committee are summarized belolv:
a. Overseeing the flnancial repofiing process.
b. Review of Intemal Control risk management process.
c. Review of the interim and annual financial statements.
d. Assessing the progress of interrral audit functions and their reporting.
e. Review olthe A11nual Financial Statements before submission to the board for approval or adoption.
f. Oversee performance ofexternal auditors and their fees ctc.

Period Colered
This report is limited to the related aspects of the committee for the financial year ended on 30th June, 2020.

Financial Reporting Process
Audit Committee his reviewed the financial reporting process, including of reporting standards, intenlal control and risk
management process.

Periodic Financial Slaternents
During the year, Audit Committee reviewed periodic and annual flnancial statements of the company. The review was

made ilong with the management report to assess in compliance with applicable accounting standards and requirements.

Commenls & Suggestions nf the Comrnittee
On discharging its responsibilities, the audit committee has assessed the followings:
i. FinanclalBtatements have been prepared and prescnted in compliance with relevant laws, regulations, IAS and IFRS.

Suggestions have been extended for lot of substantial improvement in the process of compliance.
ii. Since ttrc Company's Net Loss after tax for the year has increased to Tk. 12.55 crore compared to the previous year's Tk. 10.82

crore the dealing management has been suggested to disclose in the financiai statement the factors for such excessive loss.

iii. Also suggested to inilud" in the accounts adequate note infonnation for the company's persistent risk factors like
going co-n-cem threat assets management risk, inventory risk, market risk, pervasive liquidity risk & operational risk
with process of mitigation.

iv. Dealing marugement has been asked to put up the audit committee's minutes findings to the company's Board of
Directors' meeting for discussion and decision.

v. Advised to speed up the Container Glass Project in order to overcome the going concern threat.

vi. To equip the^accounts deparlment with financially literate people in the backdrop of the newly enforced FRA in BD
to ensure interlal control procedure in the financial management.

vii. The system of intemal control as well as the financial reports have been examined & suggested to improve.
viii. As per audit discussion, emphasis is given to the management of UGSFL with a view to cooperate for the preparation

ofaudit repoil by providing proper documents, explanations and disclosures.
ix. Accounting reco.dr were maintained properly. Advised the management for earliest realization of the reported long

pending receivable/Advances.
x. Suggested to settle all pending audit objections without fui1her delay.

?--E/--*
( Md. Rafiqul Islam)
Chairman of Audit Committee
October 29.2020



Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Ltd.
Declaration of CEO & CFO

Date: 1 Oth Nov ember' 2020
The Board Of Directors
Usmania Glass sheet Factory Ltd.
Kalurghat I/A, Chandgaon, Chittagon 9-4212.

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30th Jane,2L20.

Dear Sirs,
Pursuant to the condition No. l(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the
B SEC/CMRR cD / 2006 - I 5 8 / 207 I Admtr/80, Dated 3rd June, 20 1 g under section
Ordinance, l969,we do hereby declare that:
1) The Financial Statements ofUsmania Glass Sheet Factory Limited for the year ended on 3fth June,2g20have been

prepared in compliance with Intemational Accounting Standards(IAS) or International Financiat nepo.ting
Standards(IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any deparhrre there from has been adequately discllsed;2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in
order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

3) The form and substance of transactions and the company's state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly
presented in its Financial Statements;

4) To ensure above, the company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and
maintenance of Accounting Record;

5) our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies
and procedures of the company were consistently followed; and

6) The management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related,to events or condiiionsihut *uy cast significant doubt
on the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that :-
i) We have reviewed the Financial Statements for the year ended 30th June' 2020 and that to the best of our

knowledge and belief;
a) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements

that might be misleading;
b) These statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company's Affairs and are in compliance with

existing accounting standards and applicable laws.
ii) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which

are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company's goard of oirectors or its members.

'l--bfz-+-,-*-l

commission's Notification No.
2CC of the Securities and Exchange

Engr. Bidyut Kumar Biswas
Chief Fxecutive Officer (CEO)

Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Ltd.

(Md. Shahadath Hossain)
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Ltd.



S.AHMED & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Chattogram Oflice :

Sultan Market (3rd Floor, East Side), 151, SK.Mujib Road, Agrabad Commercial Area, Chattogram.
Phone : 031-721485, Fax : 031-2510817, Cell :01847-062545, E-mail : s.ahmed_co@yahoo.com.

Certificateas per condition No. 1(5) (xxvii)
Report to the Shareholders of Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Ltd.

On Compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Usmania
Glass Sheet Factory Ltd., for the year ended on 30 June 2020. This Code relates to the
Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-I581207lAdmin/80 dated 03 June 2018 of the
Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Commission.
Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company.
Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by
the Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance
Code.
This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit in compliance of the conditions
of the Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh
(ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate
Governance Code.
We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have
required, and after due scrutiny and verification thereof , we report that , in our opinion:
(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code

as Stipulated in the above mentioned corporate Governance Code issued by the
Commission, subject to the remarks and observation as reported in the attached
compliance status.

The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this code.

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the
Companies Act.l994, the securities laws and other relevant laws: and

(d) The Governance of the company is satisfactory.

(b)

Date : 05m December, 2020
Place : Chattogram, Bangladesh.

/M
MD. ERADAT T]LLAH, FCA

S. Ahmed & Co.
Chartered Accountants

lr l--.]



--{ompliance Report on corporate Governance
status of the compliance with 

11: 
conditions_ imposed by the Notification No. BSEC/cMRRcD/soo6- tsa/ zoz / Admin/ eo,dated og June 2018 issued under section ecc ofthu securities 

""a 
n*"rrurrg"-oJiiii"", ,nu,

eenditicE iac" TftlG

compttance status (put
Pin an the appropriate

column) EtqllEf,*s
€rf *ET!

Not
ComDtied

t-e OFD

t-1
Size of the Board of Directors:The total number of the Board membere ofCompany's Board of directors (herein after reffered to as;;Board,,; shall notbe less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty).

The Board of
Usmania class
Sheet Fadory

Limited (UGSFL)
is comprised of

09 (Nine)
Directors-rnd€;rendent Director.: Ail companies snouia nEvE 

"GZtvE-representation of independent directors on their Boards, so that the board,as a group, includes core competencies considered relevantin the contextof.eacti company; for this purpose, the company sfrall comptiance withfollowlng:

1.2(a)
at least 1/5 of the total number of diredore in the company.s Board shallbe independent directors; any fraction shall be consideiet io tne ,"xtinteger or whole number for catculating number of ;naepmJent director(s)

UGSFL BoaTd
comprised of 09
(Nine) DiredoE
out of them 03

(Three) are
Independent

Diredore.

4.2(b) For tlre purpose of this clause ,.lnd€pendent director,, meansdlrector-

1.2(b)(i) Who either_ does not hotd any share in the company or hotds l€:ss than onepercent( 1olo ) shares of the toral paid-up shares of the compdny;

Declaration of
Md. Rafiqut
Islam FCA

Declaration not
collected by

autho.ity.

1.2(b)(ii)

Who is not sponsor of the Company and ;s not.or.".t.a *itn ,nrep*ior director or shareholder or nominated shareholcjer wno noros or anyassociates, sister concerns. subsidiaaaes and parents or holJang entiueswho holds one peac€lnt or more stta.es of the Company _: pr^ovrOea thatspouse, son, daughter. father, mother, son_in law and daughter-tn lawshall be considerecl as iaft]ily nrefilebers;

Do

1.2(b)(iii) Who has not b€jen an executive of the conrpany irr immediatety precencling2(two) financjal years; DO

1.2(b)(iv) Who does not have any other relataonship. whether pecuniary or otherwise,with the company or its subsidiary or assocaated ao_p".i"=; Do

1.2(b)(v) #ho is not a rnember or TREC (Trading Right Enuflement Cedificete)roldea, director or officer of any stock excliange; Do

1.2(b)(vi)
who is not a sharehotcleri, aiEctor exceptiog independent aii.o o-i .E?of any member stock exchange or IREC hoker an jnterrnedrary of thecapital market; Do

1.2(b)(vii)
Who is not a partner or an executive or lvas not a partner or an execut,vedurifig- the preceding 3 (three) years rjf the concerned company,s staEutoryaudit firm or audit firm engaged in internal Eudat seruices o;: audit iirmconducting speciar auciit or proiessionar cert'fying compr;ance of this code.

DO

1.2(b)(v'ii) Who shall not be an independent director in more than 5 (five) in tisted
Do

1.2(b)(ix)
who has not been convictec by a cou* of conlpetent juris.,ictron as adefaulter in pament of any loan or any advance to a bank or a non_tsankFinancial Institution (NBFI) DO

1.2(b)(x) Who has not been convicted for a crinrinat offence involving moral
:Lr r"pitude. DO

1 ,2(c) The independent Director(s) shall be appojnted by the Board of Directors
and approved by the shareholders in the Annual Gene.al Meetinq (AGM).

1.2(d) The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more than 90(ninety) days.
There was no
such vacancy
has occurred

during the year.

1.2( e) The te!ure of office of an independent director shall be for a period of 3(three) years, which maY be extended for 1 (one) term only.



-

Condition No. Tifle Complied
Not

Complied
Remarks

Qualification of Independ€nt Director (ID)

1..3{a)
lndependent llirector shall be a knawledgeable indivi.luel h'lth inteErity
who is able tc ensure compiiance r{ith finan.:al, requlatory and corporate
laBs and can frake meaningful contriLlution to business.

The
Qualifications

and background
of ID justify their

abilities.

1.3 ( b) Indepehdent dir€ctor should have foll$wing qualificationr

1.3(b)(i)
BuEiness Leade. who is or was a promotor or difrector ol ail unlisted
romLrany having minimum pajd up capital of Tk. 1OO.O0 mililon or aov
lisied company or a rt{:mber of any natiofr}l or internationai chamber of
,JfilmcrLL.rbLS.e d-so i6r:otr, I

N/A.

1.3(b) ( ii)

Carrlorite leade. who is or waE a loP lev*l excessive flot lower than ahief
ExecLtive flfiic€r or Managing Director or Deputy Managing tiirector c.
Chief Financial (Jificer or Head oa l'iirafrece or Accourlts or company
se.retary or i-lead of Ifrternai Au{lil 3nd Compliance or I'lead of Lecjal
srrvice or e {and;date 1$rlh equivaient posltion of an ufliisted canpany
havinq m,nl!nufir paid-up ca;Jii-al ol 1Co.oo lnlilion or ot a iist€.j companyi

N/A,

1.3(b)(iii)
Forrner oflicial +r (;*v€rcffleflt or Statuefy oa auionomoL,s or r{:gulaiory
bo.ly in th. possiLion nol below 5th EraiJe of the national pey scale, who
has nt leagt ealucaiicrnai backqrcjunai of i:rach€rlor degree ;n ecollomics or
lJusinells ot Lat.0r

N/A

1.3(b)(iv) un:vefsily t{:aaher'}aht has eCu{:atiarnal b;rak!liound irl Ecofromic5 or
Comrje.ce or Buiine!:s Sirud;es or L avr'; ca

N/A

1.3(b)( )

PrDfersicira! !trhG is or wei an advoc;rte Fracticing at least in Lhe l-ligh Court
Divisicn of Bangladesh Suprefte Court or H Charlered Accountant or ccsl
anrl mnnaqement aacountant or Chartered Finaficial Analyst or f-hartered
aertiileii Ac.ouiltent or Cemired publi. Acccunta.rt or Cflarte.ed
manaaJsnlent Accountant or ahari€reai Ee(i^elary o, equivale,rt
eiJa!ificat;ofi.

The qualification
and background
of ID justify Mr.

Md. Rafiqul
Islam, FCA'S

a bility.

1.3(c)
-fhe :.1d{:pen.jent dirsci$!"3hall have at least 10 {te[) years of expc:risnceg
Ifl any fieid mentitIrd ifl !:lauie (bi.

1.3{d) In special casei the above clualifications cr experiences may be relaxed
. -D:r-r' t ' p' '.11 6p';-nvsl )' th . ,'o-m.5' ;orl

No such matter
arised during the

yea r.

t"4 alu?lity of Chairpergon of the 6oard qf Directors and ManagiEg
Directar or Chief Executive Officert-

1,4(a)
The positions of the chairperson of the board and the Managing Director
(MD) and,/or Chief Executive officer (CEO) of the company shail be filled by
different individuals;

1.4(b) fhe Managing Director (MD) andlor Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of a
isted company shall not hold the same position in another listed company;

7.4(c) fhe Chairperson of the board shall be elected from among the non-
3xecutive directors of the company;

1.4(d )
fhe board shall clearly define respective rules and responsibilities of the
Shairperson and the Managing Director and/or Chief Executive Officer;

1.4(e)

In absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining members may
elect one of themselves from non executive directors as Chairperson for
that particular Board's meeting; the reason of absence of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

No such matter
arised during the

Year.

1.5

The directors report to shareholders:The Board of the company shall
include the following additional statements or disclosures in the Directors'
Report prepared under section 184 of the companies Act, 1994 (Act no.
XVIII of 1994)

1 s(i) An industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry;

1. s(ii) The segment-wise or product-wise performance

1. s( iii)
Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, threat to
sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any;

1.s(iv)
Discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit
Marqin, where applicable;

l--l



Condition No. Title Complied
l{ot

Complied Remarks

1.s(w)
q discussion o"
mplications (gain or [oss);

1.5(vi)
A detaited dascussion on retated pafty transadio;=;t"E;til *"t"l.ffishowang amount, nature of related pafty, nature of tran;actions and basisof transadions of all related pafty transactions;

1 .5(vi, ) A statement of Utilization of proceeds raised through public issues, rightsissues andlor through any other instruments

1.5(viii)
an explanation
for- Initial Pubtic Offering (IpO). Repeat pubtic Offering (RpO), Rights shareOffer, Direct Listinq. etc..

1. s(ix) qn explanation on any significant variance that occurs between quaterty
Financial performances and annual financial statements;

1. s(x) {-sbtement of remuneration paid to the ai..*-E-..r,rEfrl-iEE!ErE .rt-JirectoE;

1. s(xi )
A statefient that the financtat statements p.epa.Ed-y-hE--anagement ofthe issuer company presents fairly its state of affairs,'the resutt ot itsoperations, cash flows and changes in equity;

1.5(xii) A sbtement that proper books of account of the issuer Company havebeen maintained;

1. s(xiii)
A statement appropriate accounting policies have been consistenuy appliedin preparation of the financiat statements and that the accountingestimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

1.s(xiv)
A statement that International Accounting Standards (IAS) or InternationalFinancial Repofting Standards (IFRS). as;ppticabte in'eanltaaesh, havebeen followed in preparation of the financiat statements ;n"d any depaturethere from has been adequately disclosed;

1.5(xv) A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design and hasbeen effectively implemented and monitored;

1.5(xvi)
A statement that minority sharehplders have been protective from abusiveactions by. or in the interest of, controlling sharehoiders acting eitherdirectly or indirectly and have effedive mEans of redress;

1.5(xvii)
A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer company,sablllty. to continue as a going concern, If the iss;er 

"o_pi.y i" .otconsidered to be a going concern, the fact arong with reasons thereof shalbe disclosed;

1,5(xviii)
An explanation th
resu_lts of the issuer company shall be highlighted and tire;easons thereofshall be exDlained-

1. s(xix) A_slalcment where key operating and flnanciat data of at f"""a pE."ai.gs(five) yeaE shatl be summarized;

1.5(xx) An exptanation on the reasons if the issuer .o-p".y h"!III-MEIIdividend (cash or stock) for the year;
1.5(xxi) Board statements to the effect that no bonus share or.to.t aiil..J h_I-been or shall be declared as interim dividend;

1.5(xxli) The total number of board meetings held during the year and attendanceby each dtrectori

,..5(xxill)
A report o. ttre pa
nu-mlrer of shares (along with name_wlse details-wtrere statedbeiow) h€ld by:-

1.5(xxlii)(a) Parent or subsidiary or Associated companies ..a oth".EEEIlIIf,]
Iname-wise details);

1.s(xxiii)(b)
Directors, Chief Executive Omcer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial
Officer, Head of{nternal Audit and their spouses and minor children (name.
wise details);

1.s(xxiii)(c) Executives; and

1. s(xxiii)(d)

shareholders holding ten percent (1oolo) o.ffi
company (name-wise details); Explanation: for the purpose of this clause,
the expression "Executive', means top s(five) salaried employees of the
company, other than the Directors/ Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit ano
Compliance.

1.5(xxlv)
In case of the appointment or reappointment of, Oi.e.tonT
dlscloser shall.disclose on the following information to the
shareholders:

1,s(xxlvXa) A brlef resume of a director;

1.5(xxlv)(b) Nature of hls / her experflse in speclfic funcuonal areas; and

1.5(xxlv)(c) Namas of companles ln whlch the person also holds the dlrectorshlp and
thc mrmbcrshtp of commlttces of thc board;

_I
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Condition il0. Title Complied
Not

Complied
Remarks

1.5(xry)
A management's discussion and analysis signed by CEO or MD
presenting detailed analysis of the company's position and
operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial
statements, among others, focusing on;

1.5(xxvXa) Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements;

1.s(xxv)(b)
Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly describing the
effecion financial performance or results and financial position as well as

cash flows in absolute figure for such changes;

1.5(xxv)(c)
-o-p-.rat"Hnalysis (including effects of inflation) of financial
ferformance or results on financial position as well as cash flows for
:urrent financial year with immidiate preceding s(five) years explaining
results thereofi

1. s(xxv)(d) compare such financial performance or results and financial positon as well

as cash flows with the peer industry scenario;

N/'A. Fina ncial
Performance of
peer company
are not available
in their website

1.5(xxv)(e) Breifly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and
globe;

1. s(xxv) (f) Risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements, explaining
such risk and concerns mitigation plan of the company; and

1.5(xxv)(g)
Future plan or projectionor forecast for company's operation, performance

and financial position, with justification thereof, i.e., actual position shall be

explained to the shareholders in the next AGM;

1.5(xxvi)
ffi and the cFo to the Board as
'equired under condition no.3 (three) shall be disclosed as per annexure-A;

1.5(xxvii)
A report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions of this
code as required under condition no.9 shall be disclosed as per Annexure-
B and Annexure-c.

1.6 Meetings of the Board of Directors
rd the minutes of

the meetings as well as keep required books and records in Iine with the
provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secreterial Standards (BsS) as

adopted by the institute of chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in

so far as those standards are not inconsistent with any condition of this
Code.

t,7 code of Conduct for the Chalipa,rson, other Board members and
chief Executive Officer

7.7 (a)

The Board shall lay down a Code of conduct, based on the recommendation
of the nomihation and remuneration committee (NRC) at condition no'6,
for the chairperson of the Board, other Board memebers and chief
Executive Officer of the company;

1.7( b)

The Code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the
website of the company including, among others, prudent conduct and

behaviour, confidentiality, conflict of interest; compliance with laws, rules

and regulation; prohibition of insider trading; relationship with
enviornment, employees, customers and suppliers, and independency'

Upto dated
28.11.2020 Not

available in
website.

2,O Governance of Board of Directors of subsidiary companyl-

2(a)
Probisions relatinq to the composition of the Board of the holiling company
shall be made applicable to the composition of the board of the subsidiary
company;

UGFSL does not
have any
subsidiary
company.

2(b)
at least l(one) Independent Director on the board of the holding company
shall be a director on the board of the subsidiary company;

Do

2(c)
The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall be

placed for review at the following board meeting of the holding company;
Do



3.O
Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEOi, Chief
Financial Officer(CFo), Head of Internal Audit and Compliance
(HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS)

3.1 Appointment

3.1 (a)
The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
Officer (CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), A Chief Financial Officer (CFO),
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC);

3.1(b)

The positlons of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer
(CEO), a Company Secretary (CS), A Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) shall be filled by different
individuals;

3.1(c)
fhe MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold any
3xecutive position in any other company at the same time;

Declaration of
HIAC not

collected by
authority,

3.1(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles, reasonabilities and duties of
the CFO, the HIAC and the CS;

3.1(e)
The MD orCEO. CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from their
position without approval of the board as well as immidiate dissemination
to the commission and stock exchange(s).

3.2 Requirment to attend Board of Dire€tor's meetings
fhe MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC ofthe company shall attend the
meetings of the board: Provided that the CS, CFO and/ or the HIAC shall
not attend such part of the meeting of the Board which involves
:onsideration of an agenda item relating to their personal matters.

3.3 Duties of Manging Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

3.3 (a )

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have reviewed
financial statements for the year and that to the best oftheir knowledge
and belief

3.3(aXi)
These statements do not contain any materially untrue statements or
ommit any material fact or contains statements that might be misleading;
and

3.3(a ) (ij)
These statements together present a true and fair view of the companies
affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards and
apllicable laws;

3.3(b)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the best of
knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Code of conducts
for the company's Board or its memebers;

3.3(c)
The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the annuat
report.

4
Borad of Directors Committee:-For ensuring good governance in
the company, the Board shall have at least following sub-
committees:

4(i) Audit Committee; and

4(ii) Nomination and remuneration committee

5 Audit Committee:

5.1 Responsibilities to the Board of Directors:

s.1(a) l-he company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the
loard;

s.1(b)
Ihe Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial
statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the business;

Condition No. Title Complied
ilot

Complied
Remarks



Title Complied
Not

Complied
Remarks

s. 1( c) The audit committee shdil be-reiponsibld to the Board; the duties of the
audit committee shall be clearly set fofth in writing.

5.2 Constitution of the Audit Committee:

s.2(a ) The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members;

The audlt
committee is
comprised of

O5(Five)
members.

s.2(b)
fhe Board shall appoint memebers of the Audit Commiftee who shall be
\on-Executive Directors of the company excepting Chairperson of the
3oard and shall include at least 1(one) Independent Director;

List obtained

s.2(c)

All members of the audit committee should be "financially literate" and at
least 1 (one) member
shall have accounting or related financial management background and 10
(ten) years of such experience; Explanationi The term "financially literate"
means the ability to read and understand the financial statements like
statement of financial position, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and cash flows statement and a person will
be considered to have accounting or related financial management
expertise if he or she possesses professionat qualification or Accounting or
Finance graduate with at least 10 (ten) years of corporate management or
professional experiences.

The qualiflcatlon
and backqround
of ID justify Mr,

Md. Raflqul
Islam, FCA'S

ability.

s.2(d)

When the term of seruice of any Committee member expires or there is
any circumstance causing any Committee member to be unable to hold
office before expiration of the term of seruice, thus making the number of
the Committee members to be lower than the prescribed number of 3
(three) persons, the Board shall appoint the new Committee member to fill
up the vacancy immediately or not later than 1 (one) month from the date
of vacancy in the Committee to ensure continuity of the performance of
work of the Audit Committee

No such matter
arised during the

s.2(e) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee;

5 2<t) The quorum of the Audit Commiftee meeting shall not constitute without at
least 1(one) Independent Director.

5.3 Chairman of the Audit Committee

s.3(a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to be
Chairman of the Audit Committee. who shall be an independent director.

s.3(b)

In the absence of the chairperson of the audit commiftee, the remainlng
members may eled one of themselves as Chairperson for that particular
meeting, in that case there shall be no problem of constituting a quorum aa
required under condition no. 5( )(b) and the reason of absence of the
regular chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

No such matter
arised during the

year.

s.3(c )

Chairperson of the audit commiftee shall remain present in the Annual
General Meeting (AGM):
provided that in absence of chairperson of the Audit Commtttee, any other
memeber from the Audit Committee shall be selected to be present in the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and reasons for absence of the chairperson
of the Audit Commiftee shal be recorded in the minutes of the AGM,

33rd AGM Held
on December

20, 20a9.

5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee

s.4(a)
The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings ln a financial
year; provided that any emergency meeting in addition to regular meeting
may be convened at the request of any on-e of the membere of the
committee;

The Audit
Committee
conduct O3

(Three)
meetings.The

rest of the
meeting was not

held due to
lockdown across
the country due
to COVID-19,

s.4(b)
The quorum of the meeting, of the Audit Committee shall be consituted in
presence of either two members or two-third of the members of the Audit
commlttee, which ever is higher, where presence of an Independent
Director is a must.

5.5 Role of Audit Committee:
The Audit Committee shall:

s.s(a) Oversee the financial reporting process.

s.s(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles

5.s(c)
Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is
rdequately resourced, including approval of the internal audit and
:ompliance plan and review of the internal audit and compliance report;

s. s(d) Cversee hiring and performance of external auditors.

s,s(e)
Hold meetlng with the external or statutory auditors for review of the
annual financial statements.before submission to the Board for approval or
adoption;



Condition No, Title Complied
Not

Complied Remarks

s. s(f) Review along with the management, the annual fnancial statements before
submission to the Board for approval;

s.s(s) Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yeady financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval.

s.s(h) Review the adequacy af internal audit function

5 s(i) Review the managements discussion and analysis before disclosing in the
annual report

s. s(i) Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the
management.

s.s(k) Review Management Lettere or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued
by statutory auditore.

s.s(r)
Cversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude,
evel of expertise deployed and time required for effective audit and
evaluate the performance of external auditore; and

s. s(m)

Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial public Offering (IpO)
or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Righs Share Offer have been utitized as
per the purposes stated in relevant offer document or prospectus approved
by the commission; provided that the management shall disclosed to the
Audit Committee about the users or applications of the proceeds by major
category (Capital expenditure, Sales and Marketing expenditure, Working
Capital etc,), on a quarterly basis, as a part of there quarterly declaration
of financial results; provided further that on an annual basis, the company
shall prepare statement of the proceeds utilized for the purposes other
than those stated in the offered document or prospectus for publication in
the annual report along with the comments of the Audit Committee,

N/A

3.S RGpartlng of th€ audlt cammlttGas
r,€(r) ReFqrtlng to thq loald af Dlre€ter*i

5,6(a)(i1 fhe Audit €qmmltEee shall repert on it€ aetlvities to th€ Eaard,

s.€(a)(ii) The Audlt Commlttnc {htrll lmmadl.tcly r*Fert !o th€ Eqerd of
Oir€€tora en tha fellowlng flndlhf,r. if any:-

s.6(a) (ii)(a) Report on conflicts of interests;

"There was no
reportable case

of conflict of
interest matter

arised during the
year. "

s.6(a)(ii)(b) Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified inthe internal audit and compliance process or in the financial statements;
No such matteE

has arised
during the year

s.6(a)(ii)(c) Suspected infringement of laws, reguattory comptiances includinq securities
related laws, rules and regulations; and Do

s.6(a)(ii)(d) Any other matter which one Audit Committee deems necessary shall be
disclosed to the Board of Directors immediately; Do

s.6(b)

Repofting to the Authorities:
If the Audit Committee has repofted to the Board about anything which
has material impact on the financial condition and results oi operation and
has discussed with the board and the management that any rectification is
necessary and if the Audit Committee finds that such rectification has been
unreasonably ignored, the Audit Committee shall repofr such finding to the
Commission, upon repofting of such matters to the Board for three times
or completion of a period of 6(six) months from the date of first repofting
to the Board. whicever is earlier.

5.7
Repoding b the Sharehotders and Generai Investors;
repoft on the activites carried out by the audit Commiftee, including any
repoft made to the Board under condition no. 5(6)(a)(ii) above cturing the
Audit committee and the annual repoft of the issuer company.

The Audit
Comm ittee

Repod is
disclosed in the
annual repot &

signed by the
Chairman of the
said committee.

6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC):

6.1 Responsibilities to the Board of Directors

6. 1(a )
The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
as a sub-committee of the Board

6.1 (b)

The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or
policy for determining qualifictions, positive attributes, experiences and
independence of directors and top level executive as welt as a policy for
formal process of considering remuneration of directors, top level
exeotive;



Condition No, Title Complied
Not

Complied
Remarks

The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shal be ctearty set fofth in
writ.ns covering the areas stated at the condition No. 6(s)(b)

The Committee shall comprise of at teast three members inctudtnq an
andePendent

The N RC
comprised of O

includinq an
independent

All mefrbers of the company shatt be non executlve directors

NRC was formed

December.20l9

requ irement

complied with
subsequent to

the formation of

Memebers of the committee shal be nomihted and appointed by the

The Board shall have authoriry to remove ahd appoint any member of the

In case of death, resignation, disquatificatton or removat of any member of
the cohmittee or in an other cases of vacancies, the board shalt ftil the
vacancy within 1ao (one hundred and eighty) days of occuring such

in the Commlttee:

No such matters
has arised

during the year.

6.2 (f)

The chairperson of the cohhiEee may appoint or co-opt any erernat
expect andlor member(s) of the statr ro the commtftee as advtso. who
shall be non-woting member, if the Chairperson feets that adwice or
suggestion from the externat expeft andlor member(s) of statr shal be
required or valuabte for the commirteei

6.2( s ) The company secretary shatt act as the secretary of the Commifree

6.2(h) rhe quorum of the NRC meeting shatt not constitute without aftendance of
at least an independent director;

The meetang was
not held due to

lockdown across
the country due

to COVID 19.

6.2(i)
\o member of the NRC shatt receive, either direcfly or indirecfly, any_emuneration for any advisory or consultancy rote or otherwtse, other than
:he director's fees or honorarium from the comoanv.

6.3 Chairperson of the NRC

6.3(a) rhe board shalt setect 1(one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the
:ommifree, who shall be an tndependent dtredor;

6.3(b)
In the absence of the Chiarperson of the NRC. the rematning members
may elect one of themsetwes as Chairperson for that pafttcutar meeting,
the reason of absence of the regutar Chairperson shail be duty recorded in
the minutes;

6.3(c)

The Chairperson of the NRC shal attend the annuat generat meeting (AGM)
to answer the quedes of the sharehotders: provided that in absence in the
annual general meeting(AGM) for answering the sharehotder's queries and
reason for absence of the ChairpeEon of the NRC shail be recorded in the
minutes of the AGM.

Last aGM(33rd)
held on 2oth
December,

2019. But, NRC
was formed on

11th December,
2019.

6.4 Meeting of the NRC

6.a(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in the financial year

The meeting was
not held due to

lockdown across
the country due

to covlD-19
Epidemic.

6.4(b) fhe Chairperson of the NRC fiay convene any emergency m#g|l.rtm-equest by any member of the NRC.

6.4 ( c)
The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall duty be constituted in
presence of either two members of the Committee, whichever is higher,
where presence of an independent director is must as required under
condition.6(2)(h);

Do

(d)
The proceedinqs of each meeting of the NRC shail duty be recorded in the
minutes and such minutes shatt be cohfirmed in the next meetino of the

6-5 Role of th€ NRC

6.s(a) NRC shall be independenr and responsabte or accoqntabte to the Board and
to the shareholders;

6-s(b) NRC shalt among others, the fottowlng matters ahd make
report with recomm€ndatton to the Board:

6-s(b)(i)
I qualtfiGations, Postttve

attrlbutes and independ6nce of a dtrector and recomm€nd a poft.y
t the Board. rGlating to the remun€ration of the directors, top t€vet
executive- co6siderind
the level and composition of remuneration is rEEEonEEe afu mattract/ retain and motivate suitabte dtrectors to run the companysuc.a<4fUllv:

6.s(b)(i)(b) the relationship of remuneration to peformance is ctear and meet
appropriate pet'ormance benchmarks; and

6.s(b)(i)(c)
emuneration to directors? top tevet executive invotves a batance between
ixed and incentive pay reftectinq shoft and tong-term pet'orrndrrce
,bjectives appropriate to the working of the company and its qoatsi

6. s(b)(ii) Cevising a pol,cy on Board's diversity taking into consideration age,gender,
experience, ethnicity, educationat background and nationatity;

6-s(b)(iii)
identifying persons who are quatified to become directors and who hay be
appointed in top levet executive position in accordance wath the criteria taid
down, and recommend their appointment and removat to the Board;



Condition No. Title Complied
ilot

Complied Remarks

6.s(b)(iv) formulating the crieteria for evaluation of performance in independent
directors and the Board;

6.s(b)(v)
identefying the company's needs for employees at different levels and
determine their selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria;
and

6.s(bXvi) Ceveloping, recomending and reviewing annually the company's human
'esources and trainig policies;

6.s(c)
The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and
the evaluation crieteria and activities of NRC during the year at a glance in
its annual report.

7
EXTERNAL / STATUTORY AUDITORS: The issuer company should
not engage its external / statutory auditors to perform the
following seruices of the company; namely:-

7 .1(i) appraisal or valuation or fairness opinions

The Statutory
Auditor have
declared their
if,dependent
confirmation.

7 .t(ii) financial information systems design and implementation Do

7.|(iii) book keeping or other seryices related to the accounting records and
financial statements Do

7.1(iv) broker-dealer services.
7 .1(v) actuarial seruices.

Do
7. 1(vi) internal Audit service or special audit seruices; Do
7 .l(vii) 3ny services that the Audit Committee determines. Do
7. 1 (viii) rudit or certifiction on seruices on compliance of corporate governance as-equired qnder condition no. 9(1); and Do
7.t(ix) rny other seruices that creates conflict of interest. Do

7.2

No partner or emptoyees of the externat auait n-miGnaltI6IEEEIi!-
share ofthe Company they audit at least during the tenure oftheir audit
assignment of that company; his or her family members also shall not hold
any shares in the said company:
Provided that spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother, sister. son_in
law and daughter-in-law shall be considered as family rnembers.

The Statutory
Auditor have
declared their
compliances.

7.3
Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present in the
Shareholders' Meeting (Annual General Meeting) to answer the queries of
the shareholders.

Present in 33rd
AGM Held on
December 20,

2019.a

4.1 The company shall have an official website linked with the website of the
stock exchange.

Upto dated
24.11.2O2O Not

available in
website.

4.2 The company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing

8.3
The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website
as required under the listing regulations of the concerned stock
exchange(s).

Upto dated
28.11.2O2O Not

available in

9 REpoRTTNG AND coMpLraNcE oF coRpoRATE eoven-lrlrvEE

9.1

The Company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing professional
Accountant / Secretary (Chartered Accountant / Cost and Management
Accountant / Chartered Secretary) other than its statutory auditoE oraudit firm on yearly basis regarding compllance of condiiions of
Corporate Gov€rnance Code of the Commission and such certificate shall
b€ disclosed in the annual report, Explanation: "Chartered Accountant,,
means Chartered Accountant as defined in the Cost and Management
Accountant as defined in the Cost and Management Accountants
Ordinance, 1977 (Ordinance No. LIII of 1-977); ,Ch,aftered Certifled
Secreteries Act, 2O1O.

The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of this
Corporate Governance Code shall be appointed by the shareholders in theannual general meeting,

33rd AGM Held
on December

20,2Or9.

9.3
The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the Anexxure_
C attached, in the directors, report whether the company has complied
with these conditions or not.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Taka in Lac

Authorised Capital

Paid up Capital

Reserve & Surplus

Shareholders Equity

Tangible Assets

Net Current Assets

Turn Over (Net)

Gross Profit/Loss

Net Profrt/Loss before Tax

Net Profit/Loss after Tax

Face Value per Share

Shareholders Equity (Per Share)

Earning per Share

Dividend per Share (Cash)

Stock Dividend (Bonus Share)

Amount of Dividend (Cash)

Amount ofstock Dividend (Bonus Share)

Dividend yield (%)

Price Earning Ratio (Times)

Market value per Share

5,000.00

1,308.1 1

918.11

2226.22

6688.31

289i.46

188 1.61

(iffi.21)

(8 10.10)

(Te 1.36)

5000.00

1438.92

(r. r s)

143i.i9

5811.86

2320.50

1807.65

(648.14)

(808.45)

(i88.43)

10.00

9.99

(5.4,8 )

1.00

1,43,89,Ii4

1.09

91.99

5000.00

1582.8 1

t7 \i 3.64

187 56.45

26,271,69

r 98 1.85

2080.65

( i u. /5)

(zss.so)

(zss.oz)

10.00

118.50

(1 50)

1.00

1,58,28,09 1

0.60

166.70

1,58,28,09 I

10,093

5000.00

1741.09

1 5608.24,

17 349.33

248,1,9.8 1

854.98

2403.48

(sso.+o)

(roos.so)

(rosz.os)

10.00

99.65

(a.zt)

99.00

5000.00

174,1.09

r4353.52

1694,.61

241ii.79

565.50

1286.31

( rozo.os)

(rzo+.ro)

(tzs+.t s)

In Taka

10.00

92,45

4,6.00

10.00

li.02

(o.os)

1.00

1,30,810,68

1.25

80.00

Number.of Shares

Number of Shareholders

* Prlce earning Ratio not shown due to negative EPS for the FY:2o79-2o

1,30,81,068 7,43,89,174

9879 9553

In Number

1,74,,10,900 1,74,,10,900

11,061 10,94,8

HUMAN RESOURCES

Workers

Oficers

Contract Labour

Total (As onso46-zoeo)

140

:).)

45

rti

104

30

34

JI

902

G-L-w
PARTICULARS 2015-9016 9016-2017 2011-C,Ol8 9018-9019 2019-2090

Particulars Actual
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USMANIA GLASS SHEET FACTORY LIMITED
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Usmania Glass Sheet Faetory Limited
Kalurghat, Chattogram

Ratio Analysis For The Year Ended June 3012420

A) LICIUIDTTY & SOLVENCY RATTO :

1 Current Ratio

2 Liquid / Quick Ratio / Acid Test Ratio

3 Gearing Ratio

4 lnterest Coverage Ratio

5 Asset Turnover

6 Net Working Capital

B) COST BREAK - DOWN / EFFICIENCy RATIOS :

1 Total lnventory to Cost of Goods Sold

2 Raw Materials to Cost of Goods Sold

3 Packing Materials to Cost of Goods Sold

4 W.l. Process to Cost of Sales

5 Finished Goods to Cost of Sales

6 Administration Overhead to Cost of Sales

7 Selling & Distribution Overhead to Cost of Sales

1

2

3

4

5

6

c) PROFTT RATTO :

Gross Profit to Sales

Operating Profit Ratio

Net Profit Before Tax Ratio

Net Profit After Tax Ratio

Return on Equity

Return on Assets

D) LEVERAGE RATIO:

Debt / Equity Ratio

Total Debt / Equity Fund

Long Term Debt / Equity Fund

E) ACTIVITY RATTO :

lnventory Turnover Ratio

lnventory to Current Assets

Advance , Deposits & Pre- Payments to Current Assets

1

2

3

1

i)

ii)

l

I

@ffi
S/L I Particulars 2018-2019

'1 .80:1

1.17 : 1

37a/"

(2.48) Times

0.13 Times

Tk 85.498.087

2A.53o/a

o.330k

O.33o/o

3.27%

31 .42o/o

8.O1o/o

2.140h

(3.44y")

@8.O7a/o)

(45.474/o)

(0.55%)

(0.63%)

(o.43o/o)

O.43:1

0.38:1

J.J/ I tmes

34.90%

17.15o/o



KHAN WAHAB SHAFIQUE RAHMAN & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Faruk Chamber (9th Floor), 1403 Sk. Mujib Road,
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Independent Auditors' Report to the Sharehotrders

{}f
IIsMANIA GI*AS$ STIEET F'ACTORY LIMITEN

l{r'1rrr ! rcr t}rr Lrrrlil ili-llrr } tila$rial !tr,{fii{'t}lr

I ilt.l1tJr,.,l { )1r1111,.i,

We have audited the financial statements of "Usmania Glass Sheei Factory Limited"which comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30
June 2020, and Statement ofProfit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income, Statement ofChanges in Equity,and Statement ofCash Flows for
the year then ended, and Notes to the financial statements, including a summary ofsignificant accounting policies and explanatory informations.

In our opinion, except for the effects ofthe matter described in the Basis for qualified opinion section of our report,the accompanying financial
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of "Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Limited" as at 30 June 2020, and its
financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Accounting Standards (IASs), International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and
reguiations.

li.rrir irrr {-}u*li{irrl {}nriu!*n
1. Material uncertainly relating to Going Concem:

Designed production capacity of Furnace- 1 & 2 of "Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Limitcd" was 20,100,000 (2mm basis) sft. Out of 20,100,000
(2mm basis) sft. designed capacity ofFurnace-1 is 6,700,000 sft (2 mm basis) & Furnace-2 is 1 3,400,000 sft (2mm basis). But from the year of
2018-2019 Furnace- 1 is closed as there was overstock of finished goods remained unsold due to lower market demand & water logging for hear.y

rain and it would not restart without major overhauling. On 23rd June, 2020 a major fire accident was happened in Fumace- 2 and it is quite
uncertain for resuming the production through this Fumace-2. Moreover, the Usmania Class Sheet Factory Limited suffers huge tech-nological
problem for production since long. Production technology of the company has become backdated comparing with its competitors. For the
outdated technology, cost of the product is exceeded its selling price resulting the company has been incurring huge Operating loss both in
current as well as last few years. However, management has taken an initiative for Market Survey & Economic Feasibilty on a new project for
production ofContainer Glass instead ofexisting outdated Sheet Glass technology but the progress ofimplementing the decision is carrying
significant doubt ofthe result ofthe planned project in near future.

A disclosure regarding going concem has been made in Note no. # 02.06 ofNotes to the financial statements.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants'Code ofEthics for Professional Accountants (IESBA
Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit ofthe financial statements in jurisdictions, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance these requirements and with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified opinion.

tr!*llrr ol I nrgrira:ir:
Without qualiffing our opinion, we draw attention to the following issues,
1. The reason for decrease in EPS from (6.21) in the prevrous year to this year (7.21) is mainly due to increase in operating losses (Refer to Note-42.00).
2. According to Para 9 of IAS 36, An entity shall asscss at thc cnd of each reporting pcriod whcthcr thcrc is any indication that an asset may bc

impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity shall estimate the recoverable amount of the asset. But the company did not provide anv
information regarding the assessment of any indication of impairmcnt.

3. According toParaTT ofIAS 16, Ifitems ofproperty, plant and equipment are stated at revalued amounts, the following shall be disclosed: (a)
the methods and significant assumption applied in estrmating the items' fair values; (b) the extent to which thc itcms' fair valucs wcrc determined
directly by reference to obseruable prices in an active market or recent market transactions on arm's length terms or were estimated using other
valuation techniques; (c) for each revalued class ofpropefty, plant and equipment, the carrying amount that would have bccn recognized had the
assets been carried under the cost model; and (d) the revaluatron surplus, indicating the change fbr the period and restrictions on the distribution
ofthe balancc to sharcholders. But thcre was no information in thc policy notcs, which is violatron ofIAS 16.

4. The Company did not comply with Circular No. # !1bi {rrqm/,{:Fq-<qq/efs{er;I/to\o/t of FRC datcd 07 July. 2020 rclated to Provident Fund (PF).

5. lt appears from Note # l0 ofnotes to the financial statements that the disclosure requirement (Ageing Schedule i.e. analysis ofthc agc offinancial
asscts) for Deposits & Prcpayments have not bcen made in linc with Para 37(a) of IFRS 7; Clause 5(A) (iii) & (iv) of schedulel under Rule 12(2)
ofthe Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and the provision ofPart-I, Schedule XI, Section 185 ofCompanics Act.

6. a) As per note No. 44.00 ofthe financial statements, the company has foreign cunency transaction for the year endcd on 30 Junc 2020. But thc
company has not recognized any gain or loss ansing liom foreign curency transaction in the statement ofprofit or [,oss and other comprehensive
income in line with Paragraph 23 ofIAS 2l "The Effects ofChanges in Foreign Exchange Rates"
b) The company has not shown any effect ofunreailzed gain or losses arising from Changes in foreign currency exchange rates on cash and cash
cquivalcnts in the Statement ofCash Flows preparcd for the year endcd on 30 June 2020 as a separatc line item.

Key Audit Matters

Kcy audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were ofmost significance in our audit ofthe financral statements ofthe current

\9E

ffiqffip
.,tq!Jv?



p-'*ffiL-These matters were addressed in the context of our auclit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a sepamte opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
Our audit procedures relating to thes'e matters were designed in the context ofour audit ofthe financial statements as a whole. Our opinion on the financial
statements is not modified with respect to any ofthe key audit matters described below, and we do not express an opinion on these individual matters.
We have determined the following key audit matters to communicate in our report.
Depreciable lives ofproperty, plant and equipment

The key Audil Matter
The company hasTk 2,251,967,552 included non depreciablel and value Tk. 2,069,396,385 as Written Down Value (WDV) at Property, Plant
and Equipment which staads at93.04% of its total assets with new acquisitions of Tk 671,362 made during the year.It usually thi company
policy to charge depreciation when Foperty, plant and equipment become available for use as describ eAnniteZ.ti of the notesio the financiat
statements. The management used judgment to ascertain the timing of depreciation of the propefi,platl andequipment in few cases.
Depreciable lives ofproperty, plant and equipment have been identified as a key audit matter because it requires the management to exercise
significantjudgment in relation to the estimate ofdepreciable lives ofthe assets considering the nature, timing and likelihood ofchanges to the
technical factors which may affect the useful life expectancy of the assets and therefore it could have a miterial impact on the dep'reciation
expense for the year.

Please refer to Note 3.00 "Property Plant and Equipment" ofthe notes to the financial statements for relevant details.
How the scope ofour audit responded to the key audit matter:

Our prcicedures in relation to the depreciable lives ofthe property, plant and equipment included:
' Testing the key controls overthe management'sjudgment in relation io the accounting estimates ofthe depreciable lives ofproperty, plant and equipment.
' Assessing the management's estimates on the useful lives of property, plant and equipment with reference to: (1) the consistency with the

company's expected consumption pattern of economic benefits embodied in the respective assets and futuri bperating plans including
acquisitions and retirements ofproperty, plant and equipment; (2) the comparison to the policies adopted by other comparablJentities operatini
in this area; and (3) consideration ofthe company's historical experience.

Taxation

The key Audit Matter

The Statement ofProfit & Loss and Other Comprehensive Income shows the income and expenditure derived from operations in a cumulative maaner.
G,iven the company's exposure to complex tax issues, the high level of management judgment in estimating the amounts of reserve and provision
for tax and involvement with regulatory authorities, taxation was considered to be a ke! audit matter.
Please refer to Nol're 23.OO "Deferred Tax Liabilrty- and Note 32.00 "Provision for Current Income Tax"to the financial statements for relevant
disclosures regarding calculation and disclosure of taxation.

How the scope ofour audit responded to the key audit matter:
We particularly focused on the impact ofwhether the tax provision was appropriately recognized; we conducted interviews with the company,s
tax personnel in order to assess the taxable income of the company. We re-performed the calculations made by the management re gard*gtax
liabilities to ensure compliance with the provisions of Income Tax Ordinance, 1984 and checked tle arithmetical u""*acy of the cilculati-ons.
We also carefirlly reviewed for aay contingent liabilities to be included in the financial statements in this regard.
We also obtained an uaderstanding, evaluated the design and tested the operational effectiveness of the Company,s key controls over the
recognition and measurement of deferred tax liabilities and the assumptions used thereon. We assessed key assumptions, controls, recognition
and measurement ofdeferred tax assets. We also assessed the appropriateness ofpresentation ofdisclosures againsi oolncome Tax,'.
Production & Sale Interruption for COVID-l9
The key Audit Matter

CO\'1D-19 has a big impact on imports, other procurement, production, export and other activities. The govenrment was declared general
holidays from 26.03.2020to30.05.2020 aadthe Company was compelled to shut down their production fully at that period. As per the llinutes
of333rd Q020103)BoardMeetingofUsmaniaGlassSheetFactoryLimitedheld onJ16rc2l,2020-"Thestockofhnishedgo-ods arivedat3
times ofregular stock requirement due to Glass sheet shops closure and ceased sale ofGlass for an unspecified time, the poiible expenditure
would be Tk. 128 lakhs per month if the production process is continued during COMD-l!. On the other hand, because of the lif" time of the
Fumace-02 is at the last phase, if the Furnace is fully shut down, it would be difficult to start without major overhauling and the monthly
expenditure would be Tk. 96 lakhs if the Funrace -2 keep running without production and savings would be Tk. 32la211s *-a Rou1y Ur" fo*i
ofDirectors has taken decision to keep running ofFurnance -2 without production,,,
The company has given disclosures (Note- 50& 52oflhe FSs) related to the impact ofthe Covid-l9 Pandemic.
How the scope ofour audit responded to the key audit matter:
Regarding COVID-l9 pandemic afect on the operation of Ugmania Glass Sheet Factory Limited we have reviewed the meeting minutes ofthe
Board of Directors of Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Limiled,letters of Bangladesh Chemical Industries Corporation and the lefters of Minisky
of Industries of the Government of Peoples Republic of Bangladesh. We also compared the previous year Financial Statements figures witl the
current year to find out the impact of couD-l9 Pandemic on the Business & Turnover.
0ther Informafion

Management is responsible for the other information. The other infonnation comprises all of the information other than th e financial statements
and our auditoy's repod thereon.
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our opinion-on the financrar statemetrts does not cover the other information and we do not express any form ofassurance conclusion thereon'

In connection with our audit ofthe financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other hforrnation and, in doing so' consider whether the

other infomration is materialry inconsistent with the n 
"raJ'.t 

i"-""t o. o* r,ro*rlJg"*oiol"Jio tn" ^oit 
oi otherwise appears to be

materiallY misstated.

when we read the annuar report, if we conclude that there is a materiar misstatement therein, we are required to comm.niiate the matter to the

board ofdirectors ofthe ComPanY'

ResponsibilitiesofManagementandThoseCharge<lwithGovernancefortheFinancialStatemerds
Management is responsibre for the preparation allfair presentation of the financiar statements in accordance with rASs, IFRSs, the companies

Act rgg4,the securities and nxchange Rules 19g7 and ffi;;;;krbl" raws a3o r^"srr"ii"* *a for such internzl control as management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of finan"# .,uT"il"* it , *" n"" t'iir -ui"tia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error'

rn preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company'sability to continue as a going concern' disclosing'

as aooricabre, matters rerated to going concem and *-g,;;;;;;;on"e.n ta'ris of u""i*"tiog ort".s management either intends to liquidateor

to 
""ua" 

op"tutions or has no realistic altemative but to oo so'

ThosechargedwithgovernanceareresponsibleforoverseeingtheCompany,sfinancialreportingprocess.

*;;",Xf:f'll;f:h*1':::"H:Iffili#fffl:nnanciarstatementsasawhorearefreefrommateriarmisstatement'whether
due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor,s ,"po* tl-uii*roa"* our opinion. n"urooli[ u**u""e is a high revel of assuratrce' but is not a

guarantee that an aoait conatiJtli i, "*"rar,"" 
i"itr' Isd;ii;*"yt detect a material misstatement when it exists'

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, indMdually or in the aggrcgate'they could reasonably be expected

to influence the 
""ooo-1" 

oii.ilJ, or"r"rr tut"" o" the basis of these financial statements'

As part ofan audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throushout the audit' we also:

. Identiff and assess trr".i"t" of material mis.t t"m.ni-oitne niraiciar rtut *",,t,1"]'ltl"i-aue to fraud iesign and perform audit

procedures r"rponriu, toiior;ik", il outur^uuait'"rii;;.,hril"fficient and;;t"p# * pt'ide a basis for our opinion' The risk of

not detecting a matenar mLisstatement resurting fr". ft;;; hrgh* than for one r;i#;"i;; .,,or ^ 
fraud may involve collusion' forgery

. bi:"t*Tf;:X#fr-m:'5y*"XlJHil,"ilff""ffffif,i,?JT!:,*auditproceduresthatareappropriateinthecircumstances'. e,"r*t",r," "*.01"i"i"#;#ffij11JiL:#*""Hrr#*:*smy*;r;m-"-1ffi'raatea 
discl0sures made bv

management but not for the purpose^express*g T,:l-
. conclude on the appropriateness of management', J;;;" c;;;;r; utit'"i ""'*'iti"g 

*d' based on the audit evidence obtained'

whether a materiar *""1fft;-#'iilEJt" "r"rt.ii 
r"raiti"ritirrt mav cast rig*n"*rJ""'tt on the companv's abilitv to contitrue as a

going concem. ,r*. ""11ff#kiH;;;;&":;fi;;G;Jd 
t" dr;;;;i;; in our auditor,s renort ro the relared discrosures

inthefinancial statements or, if suchdisclor*".ur" *ut"q*,.,tomodiffouroffi'd;;;;;t"^ uret^eaoottte audit evidence obtained

up to the date of o* uoJiiJt 
-r"port. 

uowever, n tu." 
"v"nt, 

oi condition..uy.n r.th" compa:ny to cease tocontinue as a going concern'

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, *A 
"oot 

rlof in".o*p*y', fi"*;:;;#"ttl i*f"Oi"g tA" disclosures' a:rd whether the

financial statements represent the underlylog t '"t*ii'# 
J"A-"'"nt-t * a manner that achieves fair presentation'

. obtain sufficient uppropriu* audit evirtince ."g*oioi'in" n *r"ial information of il;-.;,iti"t or business activities within the company to

express an oproion oo #i"f,#;il;;;*1t#?;:rT#r;i;;;;dil;.tt*, ,"p"*lrl""*a performance of the companv audit' we

*f:#g*tmt*.:";.iffilf'#I#-:***"e regarding, among otler qyryrs, the planned scope and timing orthe audit and sisnificant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies io-ir%*alo"ttol tlat we identiff during our audit'

. We also provide those- cnargJO witn goveflxuxce #iin , .[a"*""i tf,ut *t nu* 

""*GA 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding

indeoeodence, and to commriicate with them all ,#;r;;*;;;ot ". 
*utt"r. trrit -"v","*""Jry te thought to bear on our independence'

*d *h"t" applicable, related safeguards'

.Fromthematterscommunicatedwiththosecharggdwithgoveflrance,*,:ry*determinedthosematterstha!-wereofmostsignificanceinthe
audit of the financiar statements of the current perioJ'uoa'*" tn"r"ror" tt 

" 
t"1 #;;;; wJa[ describe these matters in our auditors'

reporr unless law 
"r 

r";i;il;;;ru-oes putric ascriil" J"rt irr" 
",ut ", - 

*t 
"olL 

.*t "-trv 
*" tirc,mslances' we determine that a matter

should not be commr.riicated in our report bec"*";;;;;; "oir"qu.o."' "f 
d"il-g t" *"'ii '***tfY 

be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication'

ff::::.Tj:|"iffi|l":ffi"flI|}ffi1il"J"'i,.i i", and Exchange Rules 1e87, and other applicabre laws and regulations' we also repod

the following:
a) wehaveobtainedalltheinformationandexplanationswhichtothebestofourknowledgeandbeliefwerenecessaryforthepurposesofouraudit

and made due verification thereot

b) in our opinion, prop.. uoot J Ji u".lrno as required by-law have been kept bythe company so far as it appeared from our examination of those books;

c) the statements of financial position and statements 
"f 

;il;;i;;; ;;i otlt 
". "o*p..ti"".ir. 

in.o,,," dealt with by the report are in agreement

with the books ofaccounts and retums'

d) the expenditure incurred ffi;"rd; made were for the purposes of the company's business' -7' 'z '(71t-'t* \

Khan Wahab ShafiqueRahman & Co'

Chartered AccountantsDated: November 10, 2020
Chattogram.
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Statement of Financial position 
l

As at June 30,2020 l

I particurars --l E 
i

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

3.00
4.OO
5.O0

6.00
7.00
8.00
9.00
10.00
1 1.00

Property, Plant and Equipment
Goodwill
Capital work in progress
Total Non-Current Assets

Current Assets
lnventories
BCIC Current Accounts
Accounts Receivable
Current Accounts with BCIC Enterprises
Advances, Deposits & pre-payments
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Total Current Assets
Total Assets

@rESEquitv and Reserves
Share Capital
Capital Reserve
General Reserve
Dividend Equalization Reserve
Revaluation Reserve
Retained Earnings
Total Equity and Reserves

Non-Current Liabilities :

Govt. Loan for Voluntary Retirement
Govt. Loan (BMRE)
Govt. Quasi Equity Loan (lnterest Free)
Loan from BCIC
Payable to Gratuity Fund
Deferred Tax Liability
Total Non-Current Liabilities

Current l_iabilities:
Creditors For Goods Supplied
Creditors For Expenses
Creditors For Other Finance
Dividend Payable
BCIC Current Accounts
Current Account With BCIC Enterprises
Provision for C. p. p. F.
Govt. Loan ( BMRE )
Provision For lncome Tax
Total Current Liabilities
Total Equity, Reserves and Liabilities

Managing I)irector

Dated: November 10, 2020
Chattogram.

188,533,224
111 ,944,150
74,932,O02

ssz,ose
706,44'1,469

154,985,742
11 1 ,944,150

4,274,444

1,O1

12.OO
13.00
14.00
15.O0
16.00
17.OO

18.00
19.00
20.00
21-O0
22.00
23.00

24.OO
25.O0
26.00
27.oo
28.00
29.OO
30.00
31.00
32.OO

The annexed notes 1 to 54 form- an integral part of these Financiar statement..Net Asset Value per Share (NAVpS)

/-BfiA@tz\-
Direclor

Signed as per our amexed report ofeven date

99.6s

ztL4Ja
I)irector-

-Zz I
woher(#fi;iuh,,\;,& co.

Chanered Accountants

92.45

1,172,292
317,946

33, 104,388
39,941 ,731

174,
24,'146,227

130, 1 35,372
8,359,800

1,754,016,OO4
481

1,609,460,578

174,
24,146.227

130,135,372
8,35S.800

1,754,626,133

1,734,932,732

2,A90,203
25,106,226
25,1 66,963
12,251 ,422
8,804,995

753,447

29,648,311

39,363.1 30
28,184,644
12,251 ,422
1,755,978

6s9,423

18,866,344

Khrn

Usmania Gtass Sheet Factory Limited
Kalurghat, Chattogram

646,965,351
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Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Limited

Kalurghat, Chattogram

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2020.

Sales Revenue :

Gross sales
Less: VAT

Less: Sales Commission/Discount
Net Sales Revenue
Less: Cost of goods sold

Gross Profit / (Loss)

Less : Administrative Expenses:
General Administrative expenses
BCIC Management Expenses Levy
Amortization of Goodwill
Research & Development
Total Administrative Expenses

Less: Selling & Distribution Expenses

Operating Profit/(Loss)
Add: Other lncome

Less: lnterest & Other Financial Expenses

Net Profit/(Loss) Before Charging C.P.P.F.
Less: Company's Profit Participation Fund (C.P.P.F)

Net Profit/(Loss) before charging lncome Tax:
Less : Provision for lncome Tax:

Current Tax
Deferred

Net ProfiU(Loss) After lncome Tax
Priror year adjustment

Other Gomprehensive lncome
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment
Deferred Tax Related to Revaluation
Other Gomprehensive lncome, net of tax
Total Gomprehensive lncome
Earning Per Share (EPS) - Basic/Restated

N4anaging Director

Dated: November 10, 2020
Chattogram.

33.00
34.00

35.00

36.00

32.01
23.01

The annexed notes 1

.--\
-aa+a-fo---- ^l

42.O0

to 54 form an integral part of these Financial Statements

a-)F,$ -G'U\-
Direcior

Signed as per our annexed report ofeven date

/'^p\,e
Director-

Khan Wah:

Particulars:

(125,474,9761

6,997,318
(116,844,062)

11,700,055
(105,144,0071

4,405,946
(109,549,953)

(109,549,953)

f-1Ez*8,4T8-l
| (2,874,848)l

(1,346,360)
(108,203,593)

32,602,290

(140,805,883)

E
336,773,306
43,926,93p

292,846,368
17,945,809 49,798,378

243,047,994
326,696,604
(83,648,614)

39.00

40.00

41.00

168,563,394
21,986,530

1,755,398,509



Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Limited
statemenr or cash .,f#ffiiT';TTflh.,o.a so June, 2020.

I Particulars lL @

A)

Cash receipts from the sales of goods
Cash receipts from other revenue

Cash payments to suppliers for goods & Others
Payments for Administrative, selling, distribution and others
expenses

Cash payments of income taxes
Net cash from operating activities

B)

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets
Cash paid to work-in-progress
Received Against BCIC Current Accounts
Current Accounts with BCIC & others Enterprises

Net Cash Used by lnvesting Activities

c)
Dividend Retund { (pard\
Loan from BCIC
Govt. Loan ( BMRE ) paid ( tncluding tnterest )
Loan from others

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

Net lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent
(A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalent at beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalent at end of the year

Net Operating Cash Flows per Share (NOCFpS) :

128,631,055

3,193.229
131,924,294

(193,091,917)

(38,807,062)
(2,528,761\

(102,603,456)

(617,606)
(326,094)

(1s,500,000)

243,047,990
11,700.055

254,749,045

(230,499,20S)

(39,995,688)
(2,691,323\

(19,439,174'

(924,775)

(577,696)
(2,539,200)

(16,443,700) (4,040,6711

lg13BS
67,275

(9,616,591)
(11,479,A19)

70,000,00;

70,000,000 (2A,236,949)

(49,047,156)

88,988,886

{42,715,794'l

131,7A4,68A
39,941,731

-
gg,ggg,gg6

(5.8e) (1.06)

I\4anaging Director

Dated: November 10, 2020
Chattogram.

f+,atUea:_
Direcior

Signed as per our amexed report of even date

.-7-4.*
I)irector-

Z-z--X
Khan \l ahgfStrafique Rahm)an & Co.

Chanered Accountants



Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Limited
Kalurghat, Chaffogram

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended June 30,2020.

Farticulars Share Capital
Capital
Reserve

General
Reserve

Dividend
Equalization

Reserve

Revaluation
Reserve

Retained
Earnings

Total Taka

Balance as on 01-07-2019
Net Profit /(Loss) After Tax

Restatement of arrear wages for the
year ( 201 5-1 6 to 2017-18)

174,109,000 24,146,227 130,135,3_72 8,359,800 1,754,628/1_33 (356,445,800) 1,734,932,732
(125,474,976) (125,474,976)

Restated for openig Balance

Other Comprehensive lncome

Tax Related to Revaluation

Bonus Share lssued during the year
Transfer from dividend equalization
reserve
Decreasing/lncreasing deferred tax
liability
Transfer of Revaluation Reserve to
Retained Earnings

Balance as on 30-06-2020

174,109,000 24,146,227 130,135,372 8,359,800 1,75+628,1_33 (481,920,7-76l- 1,609,457,756

2,822

(6'14,951 ) 614,951

174,109,000 24,',146,227 130,135,372 8,359,800 1,7s4,016,004 (481,305,82s) 1,609,460,578

USMANIA GLASS SHEET FACTORY LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended 30 June, 2019

Particulars Share Capital
Capital
Reserve

General
Reserve

Dividend
Equalization

Reserve

Revaluation
Reserve

Retained
Eamings

Total Taka

Balance as on 01-07-2018
Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax

Restatement of arrear wages for the
year ( 2015-16 lo 2017-18)

158,280,910 24,146,227 130,135,372 24'187'8e0 1'755'2s6'65e 
i?1311333i]'i?13:!33:133,

(32,602,290) (32,602,290)

Restated for openig Balance
Other Comprehensive lncome
Tax Related to Revaluation
Bonus Share lssued during the year
Transfer from dividend equalization
reserve
Decreasing deferred tax liability

Transfer of Revaluation Reserve to
Retained Earnings

Balance as on 30-06-2019

1 5,828,090

- (15,828,090)

- (15,828,090)

- 15,828,090
101 ,850

'ts8,280,910 24,146,227 130,135,372 24,187,890 1,7ss,296,659 (357,216,1761 1,734,830,882

',0 , ,uuo

----(770,376)770,376-
174,109,000 24,14

N4anaging Director

Dated: November 10, 2020
Chattogram.

Zlawenr-
Director

Signed as per our annexed report ofeven date

./f---V--V
Director-

Z-z--K
Khan Wahg/Shafique Rahmln & Co.

Chartered Accountants
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Kalurghat, Chattogram

Notes to the Financial Statements
For The Year Ended 30 June,2020

919q I-egal status and nature ofthe company:
01.01 Company Profile:

The Company-y9j i+gorpg.lated on Jung 30, 1959 under The Companies Act, l9l3 and started its commercialproduction in 1961' Aftei liberation of !.ang[ade$, rt was t-aken ovei b, tq"__d{ftJnfornangladesh and wassubsequently placed,under Bangladesh Cheirical tnaur#Gr corporutio, (BCIC). The Company offloaded its 4go/oshares to the General Public and-emplovees of the companv-i, is'8i7. rrr".tur"r dit-r,"-.o,,pinv are listed in both theDhaka Stock Exchange Limited and'Chittogri- st*i-'ridnli,e. Li;iA ;i'h";n;;d;;:"'"01,02 Nature of Business Operations:
The-main objects of the company is to production and distribution of Sheet Glass.01.03 Address of Registered Office:
The registered 9F.-{j!" Company and its Facto_ry i.s located at Kalurghat Heary I/A, Chattogram-42l2.

9?'99 Specific Accounting Policies - Diicloiure under IAS-1 "Presentation of Financial Statements,,02.01 Basis ofPreparation and presentation ofthe Financial statements:
The financial statements have been orepared ag{ the disclosures of information made in accordance with therequirements of the Companies Act, 1e94, s;ili;J'& E;;h;E;."1;! l-98-?;1;;;-"*iu'*'broi,ance 1984, otherapplicable local Law-and.Regulations and- Internatio""faC."r?li"g Sti"o.io.'iie's-rf ? international FinancialReporting Standard (IFRSs) ad-opted bv the Instituie ;icli.iil.d A;countants of Bangladesh (ICAB). The Statementof Financial Position and Statement of Frofit orior. ara-oih.ili.pr.rr"osive lncomE-iiari-t!.n prepared accordingto IAS-I "Presentation of Financial Statemenrsi' uiria-or-u..rra't uasii oi;;;;;;IG'ft;ilowrng gorng concernassumption under Statement of Cash Flows accordi"g t" tAs-7;siui";;; #C.#Fil;F' -'02.02 Accounting Convention and Assumption:
The Financial Statemenls-are prepared under the "Historical Cost" convention subject to the revaluation ofproperty,Plant and Equipment at 30 June, 2otz etrective fi.";i;ij;li ,0ii.'02.03 PrincipalAccountingpolicies:
The specific accountins policies have been selected .and appli_ed by the Com-pany,s management for significanttransactions and events-that have a materiat 

"tE"t 
*itt i" tffi E -iJ*;;i ior the preparation and presentation offinancial statements. Financial Statements trive bein d;p;"d *^a;;;;;;Ad'i" 

""*iii-J*" iriil-frs:i presentation
of Financial Statements. Financial statements oithe previous.year were preparg.d aciording to the same accountingprinciples' Compared to the previous year, there werd no significant .n*g";'i" the accogniing ano vaTuation policiesaffecting the fin-anciar positian uno p6rro.mun"i ;ith";;ffi;;'iiil,ri; ;i#;;;#a;'i6o1i: fitentatron ureexplained in the note for the respective itemf.sj- 

- -
Components of Financial Statements:
1. Statement of Financial position as at June 30,2020.
2' Statement of Proflt or Loss a1d 

Qthe_r Compiehensive Income for the year ended June 30,2020.3. Statement of Changes in Equity for the yeai ended June lO,iOiO.
4. Statement of Cash flows for the year ended tune j0,2020.
5. Notes, Comprising Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatorv lnformation.Application of Inlernational Accounting Sta;dards flAtss): 

/ ri'vrrrrslrv,'

The followins International Accountrng Standards (ASs) are applicable for the preparation and presentation offinancial state-ments for the year urOei-riporr"--'*"
IAS 1 : Presentation of Financial Statements
IAS 2 : Inventories
IAS 7 : Statement of Cash Flows

I{l 9a Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
IAS 10 : Events After the Reporting period
IAS 12 : Income Taxes

IA! 16 : Property, Plant and Equipment
IAS 19 : Employee Benefits
IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures
IAS 33 : Earning Per Share

I4! 1Z : Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
IAS 38 : Intangible Assets
IFRS 9 : Financial lnstruments
IFRS 15 : Revenue from Contracts with Customers

02.04

02.0s



02.06 
=-'€if,ng 

Concern:
Float glass techonology as used in the company is ttre oldest & outdated compared to the present day technology of
much more improved glass products all over the world not to speak of our country alone, So the company's Sheet glass

is substantiallylossinfyearafter year in terms of production efficiency and marketability simultaneously forctng the

increase in production iost added with gradually decrease in selling price tlus justifying the company shifting of ifs
product llne. As such the company is going to implement a new project for production of container glass within next

i*o y"*r. Board of Directors of UGSFL discussed to estabtsh a new container Glass plant in the Board meeting No

327 , 328, 330, 332, 333 & 334th. As part of its implementation a tender is in process (Negotiation stage) to select a

firm for Market.sgrvey & Economic feasibility study .Hopefully within few month the selection process wlll be

completed & selected frrm will start the survey works within stipulatd time which will take over the existing fucilities

as much as possible.

02.07 ReportingPeriod:
The financial statements cover one accounting year from lst July, 2019 to 30 June, 2020.

02.08 FunctionalandPresentationalCurrency:
The financial statements are prepared in Bangladeshi Taka @DT), which is the company's functional crrrency.

02.09 Comparative Information:
Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the year ended 30 June, 2020 for all numerical information
in the financial statements and also the narrative and descriptive inforrnation where it is relevant for understanding of
the current year's financial statements.

02.10 Statement of Cash tr'lows:

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared in accordance with IAS-7 "Statement of Cash Flovrs". The statement shows the

skucture ofchanges in cash and cash equivalents during the financial year. Statement ofCash Flows has been prepar€d

under Direct Method.
02.11 Statement of Changes in Equify:

Statement of Changes in Equity is prepared in accordance with IAS-1 "Presentation of Financial Statements". This

statement reflects information about the increase or decrease in net assets or wealth.

02.12 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Tangible fixed assets are accounted for according to 14.5-16 Property, Plant and Equipment at revalued amount less

cumirlative depreciation. Assets are depreciated according to the diminishing balance method except Furnace-l,

Furnace-2, BM-RE-Transport Vehicle, Office Equipment (selected). Details of revaluation has been presented in schedule

ofproperty, plant and equipment and report ofrevaluaion ofassets and liabilities enclosed with the financial statments.

02.13 Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment:
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its usefirl life. Depreciation is

charged under diminiihing balance method on all fixed assets except Furnace - 1, Furnace - 2 , Offrce Equipment &
vehidles. Depreciation continues to be provided until such time as the written down value is reduced to Taka one.

Depreciationhas been charged on additions to fixed assets when the assets are available for use.

The rates at which assets are depreciated per annum, depending on the nature aad estimated useful life of assets are

given below:
C.llrsery-ct.Attsttr
Furnaoe - 1

Furnace - 2
Offlce Equlpment
Vehlol€
tsulldlng

Flate of Oepreciatlon

Plant, Machlnery and EquiPment
Factory EquiPm€nt
Furniture & Flxtur€s
Sundry Assets

A2.11 Impairment:
In accordance with the provision of IA5-36, The carrying amount of non-financial assets other than Inventories of the

company involved in the manufacturing of products. No such indication of impairment has been observed till the end

ofthi period. Besides, the company revalued it assests & liabilities as on 01.07.2017. The book value of assets are

lower than Market price. So assets impairment is not Considered necessary.

02.15 Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents include Cash in hand, Cash atbanks and F.D.R, which are available for use by the company

without any resfictions.

@

Strelght Lln€
Stralgtrt Llne
Stralght Llno
Stralght Llna
Dlmlnlehlng Balanoo
Dlmlntshlng Balanco
Dlmlnlshlng Belance
Dlmlnlehlng Balance
Dlmlnlshlng Elalano6
Dlmlnlahlng Balance

2.),19-202()
50/o - 200/o
5o/o ' 2Oo/o

1Oo/o - 2Oo/o
,too/o

2.5Oo/o
2.5Oo/o - 5o/o

5!o
1Oo/o
'toYo

lOVo - SOVI

zo1.-aglE
50/. - 200/.
5o/o - 2Oo/o

1Oo/o - 2Oo/o
1Oo/o

2.5Oo/o
2.5Oo/o - 5o/o

5o/o
1Oo/a
1Oo/o

10 - 5oo/o

-



02r16' Income Taxes ( IAS-12 ):
The comoanv is a Publicly Traded Company in terms of thellcome Tax Ordinance, 1984 and Income Tax is applicable
Q ?5'" rilbirsiness inao;,;;r 0;0% o-n*gro* receiprs which ever 

" nig'ri"i.'"""i ' 
/u' a,u I

Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities have been accounted for in accordance with IAS 12 : Income Taxes.Deferred tax arises due to temoorarv difference, aeauctiuti-oi iax"ut" miirr" i".rl. 

"i 
iiiiir*t.ns recosnized in thestatement of Profit or Loss anb ot(er comptetieniiue i;;;;.:X;'"porary diffeiin..'l;'iir;;i"d;;;;;"#r*;# iii;tax bases of an asset.or liability and its cdrrying amountTi"po;iaatft;ilirn-i'ireSt;;;eit orFinancial position.

Delerred tax asset or liabilitv is fhe amounr ofinc6me tax puyiUt" o, recoverable i" tiuie peiiod (s) recosnized in thecurrent period. The delened tax asset I incomJ"i tiiuii,ry 
-iip.,irir 

a-o* ;;;;Ji;;i;;"i'iffiiili l;;;fi;ilfriiiri'i;and from the income tax authority.
02.17 Emploree's benefit Cost:

i) Short-term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amountexpected be paid if the Comnanv ha.s a nre-sent legal or 

"onst.ucti"e'bliiiitibiit" riiv'irrii ur"ount as a result of pastservice benefit provided by the 6mploy.'... L .ur.?-ia".it i,Tr-iirpr"yee his/her succeedor ger a amounr cqual ro 36month Basic saiary/wages'as grou[ rc,'rn t nsurancercompensaiion'Eenetit.
(ii) Defined contributory providenl Fund
The Company operatcja recognised provident fund schcme where.employecs contribute l0uo oltheir basic salary
XilH?Tlitrl,.:?i],., 

by the eompairy. rhe p'o"iairi'iunJii'co-nsiaer6a a' airi"iJili,i'iurr.l.v'u.ire ;;;;s*i [i
(iii) Defined Gratuity Fund Trust
Thc Companv operates a Gratuity scheme. provision in rcspect of.which-is made annually covering all permanenteligiblg crirpl5ye6s. ili;.;-pl;r;;'..clt;;tt [,ra i' ui'i.g ffi;;;l u. defiened Gratuiry plhn. Defined craruiry plants a rctiremcnl hcnefit plan und'er which ambunts to be pa"id as posi retirement bcnifits ard deGrcmincd bi;"fb;;J;i;employees eamings and year of service.

02.18 RercnueRecognirion:
Sales are recosnized at the time of actual delivery to the buyers from the factory godown when risks and rewards ofrelated goods ire translerred. or..iiei[r.-;;.h;rs;.'i;."#.irLri*iiiiiili,I*lBUuuwrr wrr

An entitv shall account for a contract with a cust6mer that is within the r"op"'oiiFns- 15 only when all of thefollowinI criteria met:
i) Identif, the contract(s) with the customcr.
ii) Identify the performance obligation in the contract.
iii) Determine the transaction price.
iv) Aliocate the transaction price to thc performance obligations in the contracts.
v) Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a p-erformance obligations.02.19 Ea;"ning Per Share:
The Company calculates earning per share_ (EPS) in accordance with "IAS 33 : Earning per share,, which has beenshown in Statement of Profit or L-ois and other comp.ehensive inc;;;. ihir rrur ui"n 

"ii",irat.d-uv 
aiuioirn the basicThis has been cai-culated by dividing the b;rrcearnings by the weiehted average n""rGi;? ;.d,;;;i ;h;;;; ;;ilffiliig ffifft[:';#]Valualion 6fstock & Slores:02.20 Valuation 6f Stoctr & Siores:

The C

Particulars
Raw Materials, Chemical
& Packing Materials
Stores, Accessories & Spares
Stores-ln-Transit
Finished Goods

Work-ln-Process

Mode of Valuation

At Cost under Periodical Weighted Average.
At Cost under Periodical Weighted Average.
At Cost up to date of Financial posltion.
At cost under Periodicar Weighted Average or Net Rearizabre Varuewhichever is lower.
At Cost of Raw Materials, Fuel & power and Labour Charges.

02.21

02.22

02.23

02.24

02.25

Company's Profit Participation Fund ( C. p. p. F'. )
No Provision has been made for c.p.p.F. because the company has net loss.
Receilable:
The Company considered all its Debtors as good and all advance, deposits & pre-payments are at fully realizablein cash or valueLiabilities :

A11 the Liabilities have been stated at their anticipated amount payable.
Transaction ofclosing balance offoreign currency loan :

The Company does not have any foreign currency loan at the date ofFinancial position.
Financial Instrument risk
Financial Assets
Financial Assets of the company include cash & cash equivalent ,equity instrument to another entity,Trade receivabiesand others receivables.
Financial Liabilities
The company initially recognizes a financial liabilities i! its statement of financial position when and only when, thecompany becomes a party to the contractual provision of the initruinint.^ 

-*-



3.00 Property, Plant and Equipment (Cost / Revaluation less depreciation)
Land & Land Development
Building
Other Construction
Plant & Machinery
Furniture & Fixture
Other Assets
TOTAL:
Cost:
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year
Add: Revaluation Surplus
Less: Discarded during the year
ClosingBalance(A)
Depreciation:
Opening Balance
Add: Charged during the year
Less: Discarded during the year
GlosingBalance(B)

Written Down Value ( A - B )
For details please refer Annexure - A

A:

B:

8.5 Acres

3.03

99.25%
0.50%
o.25Vo

2,069,396,385
28,714,491

8,258,943
144,998,573

341,O31

535,118,448
37,133,735

36,855,232
185,669

2,823,548,37!+
67J..362

2,A24,219,736 2,8.23.ilA374

2.069,396,385
28,A71.953
8.585.806

180,90S,206
376,427
290,149

2,24fJ,429,926

2,822,690.A74
857,500

s72,252JA3 535.118.448

2,251,967.553 2.288.429.926

2,069,396,385 2,069.396.385

37,366,062
148,242

92,834 94,121.
37,133,735 37.6,4A.425

497,470,423
37,644,425

3S3,785
152,850

98,411

85,902
14,338
40,700

7't,514
857,500

. 393,785
393,785

c:

3.Ol

3.O2

3.03

Land in Pdssession:( Afiter revalued as on 01.O7.2017)
TheCompanypossessedg.8AcresfreeholdlandatKalurgr',tH"ffi"ffi
Factory Area
Residential Area
Total
Bangladesh Land Survey Ledger (Khotian) no. : 15 and BS Dagh no. 9O15 and 9Og3.
Allocation of Depreciation:
Factory overhead
Administrative expenses
Selling and Distribution expenses

Depreciation allocated to expenses as per allocation rate approved by BCIC/ Board of Directors.
The following addition of fixed assets has been made during the year:

Notes
Factory Building Unit - 1& 2 O3.O3.01
Residential & Welfare Building Unit - 1 03.03_02
Residential & Welfare Buitding Unit - 2 O3.O3.O3
Other Constructlon O3.03.O4
Laboratory section O3.O3.OS
FurnaceNo.-1 03.03.06
FurnaceNo.-2 O3.O3.07
Power House O3.O3.OS
Office Equipment O3.O3_09
Factory Equipment 03.03.10
Offlce Furniture 03_03.11
Other Section O3.O3.12
Sundry Assets O3.O3.1 3

3.O3,O1 Factory Building Unit - 1 & 2
Sales office ( Besides toading point ) & Others

3-O3.O2 Residential & \Nelfare Building Unit - 1

Bachelor Barrak

3.O3-O3 Residential & Welfare Building Unit - 2
Bachelor Quarter Conversation to Family euarter

3-O3.04 OtherConstruction
Power House
Road, Drain & Others

3.O3-O5 Laboratorysection
Other Apperatus

sos,oer

8,520

rc,itq

8,960
3,700
2,500

4,787
671,362

4,520
___-______e,s?g_

9A,411
98,41.1

1.3 Acres-93,Acre;

1 52,850
1 52,850



---.1:j

3.03.06 Furnace No, - 1
Furnace -A (Base & Steel Structure)
Air Blower With motor/pump

3.O3.O7 Furnace No. - 2
Furnace - (Streight)

3.03.08 Power House
Water pump

3.03.09 OfficeEquipment
Telephone set & steno sets
lnternet Modem
Laptop/
Computer and Machine

3.03-1O FactoryEquipment
Furnace Section Loose Tools
Weighting & platform Scale

3.03.1 1 Office Furniture
Weighting & platform Scale/Refrezerator
Exhaust Fan

3.O3.12 Other Section
Power House

29,14,6.

3,700

3,70()

--
2.500
2.500

-

40,ooo

--- 

-i+F*?-ffi*ffi
lll,"ii;[';i-Li;;;X]J;j""=iltother admissiore rist bv Shadharan Bima Corporation. Vehicres ueing covereo uy

4,787

4,322,670

293.361
31 ,123,959

169,953
5,607,286

29,4A9,715

company as on

15,257,756
3,O28,793

43,909
331 ,475
236,973
161 ,A77

14.2A4

4,255,395

11,252,16,3
407.147

32,120,632
5,798.66S
5.341 ,127

12,175.762

7,7o1 .615
77,345

Goodwill:

Gapital Work in progress
Opening Balance

Spares, Accessories & Stores
6.O2

Stores ln - Transit 6.O3

Work-ln-Process 6.O4

Finished coods 6.05

Total 6.06

lnventory items were counted physicall by a team of concerned2020.
6_Ol Raw materials:

Soda ash ( Heavy ) 36.O1Dolomite Stone 36.O1Lime Stone 36,O 1Sodium Sulphate 36_O1Silica sand 36.O1Coal
36.O.1Feldspar
36.O1Cullets (Purchase)

-----E#Hf ----ffi
lo':;',,:ff;?31^lF?li,%B:13::.^l?1: 7^'i-=:"^1"^T:*asib,itv studv-& Market survey was compreted ror

Add: During the year

i"=JXll,:L':S,"ew 
Froat crass project. rn tne ry. ior;_;;;;;;;:"T;,;;:1ffi'r::H:l"HT 3",:J"#il

Raw Materials 6.O1Packing Materials 19,942,062

267,069
2,1A1 .4e,A

41 ,343
6,O77

19,
Total Raw Materials 36.O 1

46,913 1A2,Aao

5.OO

6.OO

30 2019

, , 7e,al4
73_A74

-

Opening Balance
Less: Amortized during the year
Closing Balance

ia"-r"*ffithe SOth special Board Meetino date.t 116 11)^^^ a- ^^- -^..^,-.^a:__:l?,::tlHx='1 
Board Meetins dated o6.1r.zoo+. n" pJ.";;;;H';:;:;i'+#:'#?,'"1[ i;1'3"tfl!il:[:i:during the year,

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

I

li

3,647,400
911,850
73



The above amount consists of
6.05 Work in process

Particulars

A) Raw Materials:
Silica Sand
Soda Ash ( Heavy )

Dolomite Stone
Lime Stone
Sodium Sulphate
Coal
Feldspar
Total Raw Materials
B) Fuel & Power:
Natural Gas

Packing Materials:
Newsprint
Dry Grass
Corrugated Sheet
Total Packing Materials

Spare, Accessories & Stores:
A) Spare & Accessories
Refractory Materials
Electrical spares & Equipment
Spare Parts & Components
Machinery Spares
Total Spare & Accessories
B) Stores:
Construction Materials
Pipe, Tube & Fittings
H.S.D Oil
L,D OiI
Kerosene & Other Oil
Paint & Varnishes
General Hardware
Loose Tools
Debituse Materials
Medicine
Printing & Stationery
Miscellaneous Goods
Debituse Clay ( Osmos )
Total Stores
Total Stores, Spare & Accessories: (A+B)
Store in Transit:
Soda Ash ( Heavy )

Sodium Sulphat
Refactory Materials
Debitues Clay (Osmos)
Machinery Spares & Accessories
Total :

36.02
36.02
36.02

11,059
't 5,635

8,747,475
3,037,231

743,774

741 ,997
405,O12
291,258
168,280
115,590
45,735
93,793

1,876,372
1,329,853

42,417
200,541
985,768

the value of the materials in transit booked during the current year i.e. 2019-2024

Quantity Rate
MT PerTon

Total Fuel & Power
C) Labour Charges
Daily Workers
Permanent Workers
Shift Officer / Foreman / S. in charge
Total Labour Charges
Total (A+B+C)

196.089
67.982
47.457

2.772
6.978
0.559
0.272

2,1 1 ,000 m3

922
30,660

6,617
3,411

14,820
14,047
15,550

10.70

Person
510
221

204

180,794
2,084,328

314,023
9,455

103,414
7,852

Rate
377

1040
1095

192,270
229,840

@tffi
Amount in

43,0.16
114,108

. 249.S83__._-._:WIfr_
6.03

6.04

10,481,545 10,989,934
23,010,025 25,328,521

664,332
620,246

1,S15
168,280
't02,783

33,744
89,036

1,852,805
1,994,779

217,426
179,418
867,347

9,076,105
4,488,360

774,122

5,599,103
5,288

35,342
't58,633

303

205,893
2,284,195

329.826
12,474

'101,181

7,938

_ ,1_,230 4,230
2,704,096 2,945,737

2,257,700 1,637,360
2,257,700 't,637,360

192.274
340,340
225.420

--****--mm-5,341,127



Amount in Taka

Finished Goods
Quantity Statement of Finished Goods on 2mm basis (SFT.):
Opening Stock
Add: Production during the year
Available for Sales
Less: Sales during the year
Closing Stock

Net Realizable value of 2,S18,336 SFT finished goods @ fk. 1,171 per 100 SFT = Tk. 29,489,115. Cost (under

29,489,715 12.175.762
Quantity Quantity
839,129 4,358,320

10,968,700 15.387.35s
11,807,829 19,745,675
9.289,493 18,906,546
2,518,336 839.12s

7.O0

periodicweightedaveragemethod)of2,518,336SFTfinishedgoods@Tk.2,308per100SFT=Tk. 
s8,112,281 .

BGIC Current Account:
Opening Balance
Less: Transferred to BCIC Current Account ( Liability ) , _'...:;...:.,....-r,..:,,,,.i..i.

-l
+l

Ii g.oo Accounts Receivable: =--w 
iI, , ;i;,.;;;J:i:;;;:j:::.r 
iI Jhe amount represent excess delivery against sales of glass in the financial year 2017-201g which is recevable I

i trom customer lvat Lw t t -.v to wt ltut I t!, reuevaote 
I

Add: Paid during the year

9.00 Current Account with BCIC & Other Enterprise:
Bangladesh lnsulator & Sanitary Ware Factory Limited
BCIC Branch office, Ctg.
Khulna Hard Boards Mills Ltd.
Chhatak Cement Co. Ltd.
Chittagong Chemical Complex
MEB Industries Limited
Total

10.00 Advances, Deposits & prepayments:
Advances
Deposits
Prepayment
Total10,01 Advances:
Advance against Wages & Salary
Advance against Supplier / Contractor
Advance for Purchase
Advance against Expenses
Advance against TA / DA
Facilities advances to Employees
Advance lncome Tax
Total

10.01.01 Advance Against Wages & Salary:
Year wise break-up of the above balance is as under
Particular
Workers
Staff
Officers
Total

Subsequently Taka 1,A11,106 were
20,2020.

74,456
59,377
4,615

22,862
tco,oJo

317,946

74.4s6
59,377
4,615

22.862
156,636

2,851,:438
3,

10.01
10.02
10.03

10.01.01
10.01 .02
'10.0'1 .03
10.01.04
10.0'l .05
10.01 .06
10.01 .07

25,499,328
494,753

25,739,501
494.753

______ry9;64r_ 19,757,36925,499,328 25.73s.su

1,50'1,693 .: ..,'. r. , .,: .ti1*g;:l\.
410,139 +st,sss

, 269,253,,',.i:..;;,-':$!lag,g'
_ ----- rJ8iO85 --- 1.913.6r?

adjusted I realized out of above barance Taka 2,1g1 ,og5 up to september

=!'119,19-Z 6,73e,e48
33,104,388 3r.W4.202

2,181,085
1,554,711

55,292
102,425
46,000

802,173

1,913,627
2,822,946

47.133
331,747
55,500

811.179

2019



1O*q1,O.2- Ageing Schedule of Advance Against Supplier / Contractor:

3().o6-2()20 2019-2tJ20 2(J15-2016 &

Baisaki Engineering \n/orks Ltd.
Canteen Realization
Berger Paints (BD) Ltd.
Gazi \ /ires Ltd.
Bangladesh water Dev.Board
Jamuna Oil Co-Ltd-
Teleptrone Shilpa Sangstha
Advocate A.H Khan
M/s Orbis Trade Network
Adv. Ahmed Sohel
M/s BISF, Dhaka.
M/s Coma Creation
M,/s P.C Corner
B Ahmad & Co/Adv.Abu
Naser,Ctg
M/s KYCR Coil lnd- Ltd
M/s BFIDC, Ctg.
M/s Essential Drugs Co.Ltd.
M/s Chhatak Cement Co.Ltd-
M/s Super Star Dis. Ltd-
M/sRFLElectronics
M/s Samrat Enterprise
BOC (BD) Ltd./Linde BD.Ltd.
M/s Badri Mills Stores
M/s Bangla Trac Ltd.
M/s Automation Eng.Ltd
M/s Estern Tubes
M/s Asian Paints
M./s Absar & Brothers
M/s. Rahimafrooz Dist.Ltd-
M/s. Rupali Agency
M/s- Key on Machinery stores
M/s. Pintu refrezeration
M/s. Bangladesh Lamps
M/s. Estern Cables Ltd.
M/s. Computer village
M/s. Padma Oil Ltd.
A.C. Bazar.Chattogram
M/s. Shah Amanat Trading
M/s. Kamrabad stationery
Total

Mr.Md.Nazrul lslam
Mr.Kamal Krishna sarker
Mr.Sekandar Ali
Mr,Abu sayed Miah
Mr.Sohel Arman
Mr.Sajib Chakraborty
Mr.Muntasir Mamun
Al Amin Munsi
Mr.Sohel Uddin Khan
Mr.Sakawat Hossain
Mr.Moinul Haque
Mr. Md. ToMiqur Rah
Mr. Jahrul lslam
Mr. Debbrat Barua
Mr. Abdul Motaleb
Mr. Abraham Linkon
Mr. Kh.Saiful Haque
Mr. Mehedi Hasan Bhy.
Mr, Abdul Mazid
Syed Abad ali
Dr. Abdul Hakim
Total

Subsequently Taka 6,9OO

14,500

216,OO4
'1 ,303

10,747
12,979
4,443
5,OOO

90,345
25,OOO

146,243
4,415

33a,OOO
300,385

22,400
23,472

62,134
22,590
34,110

ea,)zs

zr,ooo
36,146

(141,735)
216,OO4
(49,3A4)

(3so,6ao)

(5ao,ooo)
(32,s7s)
(1 a,1 90)
39,O94

(3O,46a)

(24,117)
(36,30o)

22,945
<72,3OO)
(64,6A1)
(47,AA2)
(66,34o)
(64,146)

14,500
141,735

50,6a7
10,787
12,979
4,483
5,OOO

90,345
25,OOO

186,243
4,415

33a,OOO
300,345

350,640

,r,)oo
23,472

sao,ooo
32,375
I a,1 90
23,O40
22,590
34,110
30,468

46,275
24,117
36,300
21,06,0
1 3,1 61
72,300
64,6A1
47,aa2
66,340
64,146

14,500
137,662

3,444
23,916
10,747
12,979
4,443
5,OOO

90,345
25,OOO

275,991
146,243
73,A30

't 91 ,OOO
300,345
179,A61
350,640
200,ooo

22,400
29,22A

5ao,ooo
14,996
1 4,1 90
23,O40

5,544
so,a50
30,46a

150,OOO
46,275

14,500
71,760
20,173

3,397
10,747
12,979
4,443
5,OOO

90,345
25,OOO

46,631

161,OOO
228,187
477,317
159,470
216,OOO

7,500
44,472
45,610
14,996

14,500

'to,zaz
12,979
4,443
5,OOO

90,345
25,OOO

iu
1,300

5.'l oo
12,550

135
951

6,OOO

46,275

66,340

Subsequently Taka 212,7os were adjusted /realized out of above balance f aka 1,5s4,711 up to September 30,
2020.

1O.O1.O3 Ageing Schedule of Advance Against purchase:

3,900
5,600

38,'140

(6,1 1 O)

'o'u:oo'

(950)

:

(.'' ,"', r)
(4oo)

1,4_OO

u,iur. .o.irz
4,504 4,504

- 32.080

a , ,n,1,
500
oo:

a,uuJ
479

21,530
6,320

42

uoo

1.400
2,700

were realized/adjusted out of above balance Taka 55,292 up to September 30,2O2O.

3,900
5,600

38,1 40

52

:



10.0ii-04i\geing Schedule of Advance Against Expenses:

Mr. Debobrata Barua
Mr.Abdul Malek
Mr .Allauddin Alam
Mr. Jahrul lslam
Mr. Md. Masudul Alam
Mr. Md. Nazrul lslam
Mr. Muntasir Mamun
Mr.Totiur Rahman
Mr. Sekandar Ali
Ainal Hossain
Mr. Md. Towfiqur Rah
Mr. Abdul Hakim
Mr. Hasanuzzaman
Mr. Abraham Linkon
Mr. Kh. Md. Saiful Haque
Mr. Moinul Haque
Mr. Sohel Uddin Khan
Mr. Md.Shoyeb
Mr. Sohel Arman
Mr. Amir Hossen
Mr. Sakawat Hossain
Mr. Syed Abed Ali
Mrs. Sangita Dewanjee
Mr. Shohrab Hossen
Mr. Sajib Chakraborty
Mr. Monirul lslam
Mr. Hafez Nurul lslam
Mr. Abdul Mazid
S.M. Abdullah Al Mamun
Mr. Sabibur Rahman

Total

10,400 15,400

179,000 359,000
3,162 5,876

_ 16,000

4,000

z,ioo z,ioo

23,667 1,238
20,004 1,919

- 3,500
- 37,310

8,'160 8,160
J I,OJO

3,300
1s,000
20,000

2,219

to,siz
20,000

10,000

1 80;

zz,qi+
500

2.760

12,279
(1,99e)

r o,sza
20,000

10,000
(10,400)

1,800

(1 7e,000)
(e_72)

(4,000)

tz,iool

(23,667)
13,450

500

(5,400)
(31,636)

(3,300)
(15,000)
(20,000)

4,218

4,700

990
4,800

zJz

:o

13,000

ae,ooo
300
400

2,000
.1 0 07n

2,000
432

20,000

65,00;

10,400

4,000

50,000
21,920

2,000
23,400

2,500
5,000

(225,322) 331,747 450,903 184,220

Subsequently Taka 22,000 were realized/adjusted out of above balance Taka 102,425 up to Septembe r 30,2020.

,000

152,174

10.01.05

Mr. Alauddin Alam
Kazi Md. Hasan Reza
Mr. Askandar Mirza
Mr. Syed Abed Ali
Mr. Al Amin Munshi
Mr. Sakawat Hossain
Mr. Sohel Uddin Khan
Mr. Sojib Chakraborty
Mr. Shoyeb Chy
Mr. Saiful lslam
Mr. Shahidullah
Mr. Md. S. K Tajuddin
Mr. Md.Moinul Haque
Mr. Md. Montasir Mamun
Mr. Mehadi Hassan Bhy
Mr. M.Momin
Mr.Shah Alam
Mr. Abul Kashem
Total

7,000
3,000

4,500
3,000

(12,000)

te oool

2,500

- 4,000
'1 ,000 4,000

12,000 84,000

- 5,000
- 3,000

6,000
2,690

3,000
4,000

30,000
2,000
3,500
4,000
5,000
3,000
4,500
6,000

264
190

'19,000

2,000
1,500
1,500

22,0-00

2,000
1,500
1,500
3,000

o,ooo
6,000

11,000
2,000

Particulars 30.06.2020 2019-2020 2018-2019 2017-2011 2016-2017 2015-'t6 & Earlier

Kamol Krishna Sarker

102,425

Schedule of Advance T.A/ D.A:

Particulars 30.06.2020 2019-2020 2018-2019 2017-2018 2016-2017 2015-16 & Earlier

. Hasanuzzaman 11 1,000 1

Subsequently Taka 15,000 were realizedladjusted out of above balance Taka 46,000 up to September 30,2020.



10.01.06 Facilities Advance to Employees.

10.01.07 Advance Against lncome Tax:
Opening balance
Add: AIT deducted from FDR & STD tuC
Paid at lmport Stage
AIT deducted from Dividend A,/C

Advance CorPorate Tax
AIT on Vehicle Fitness
Less: Adjust lncome tax ( Assessment Year 2O19'2O2O )

10.02 Deposits:
Linde (Bd) Ltd
Karnafully Gas Distribution Co. Ltd

Sr. Post Master GPO Ctg'
Lanka Bangla SecuritY
Total

10.03 Prepayments:
Prepaid lnsurance
PrePaid VAT
Prepaid Supplementary DutY
PrePaid Salary lncome Tax
WASA, Chaftogram
Prepaid VAT(Direct)
Total

U GSF/SatesA/AT I O 1 I 2O2O I 21 I 1 308 Dated 1 2 " 
1 O -2024'

11.00 Cash & Cash Equivalents:
Cash at Bank
Cash in Hand
Fixed DePosits Account (FDR)

11.01 Cash at Bank:
STD Account
Dividend Account

11.01.01 STD A/G
Name of Bank
Sonali Bank Ltd., Bahaddarhat Branch, Chattogram

Janata Bank Ltd., Laldighi East Br., Chattogram

lFlC Bank Ltd., {grabad Br., Chattogram

Standard Bank Ltd., Bahaddarhat Br.' Chattogram

Mutual Trust Bank Ltd., Kalurghat Branch,Chaftogram

NCC Bank Ltd., Kamal Bazar Branct, Chattogram

19,757,369
396,871

2,061,890

43,162
446,943

680

168,648
3,095,381
3,000,000

33,369
175,000

1S,056,267
629,s40

1,989,136
2,U7

70,000
1,994,221

19,757,369

43,162
446,943

680
3,968

-*---*J9EZ!9-

Subsequently Taka 637,909 were realized/adjusted out of above balance Taka 7,1 10,307 up to September 30' 2020

The amount of 3,0g5,381 arises from VAT Account ourrent in the Financial year 2018-2019 which is adjustable to sales vAT

of next month but later on Govt did not adjust within F.Y:2019-2020 .in this issues customs Excise vAT commissionerate

office,chaftogrma issued a Letter No : 4th/A(21/240/Accounts Currenuusmania Glass/scho:dho: 2019/4206 Dated

30.10.201g.on the other hand the The amount of 3,000,000 arises from supplementary Duty against sales of Glass in the

Financial year 200g-09 which is adjustable to sales VAT of next month but Govt.did not adjusUrefund the amount up to

30.06.2020. In this connection, we are communicating frequently to adjust the amount which latest ref' no

11.0'l
1 1.02
11.03

't 1.0'l.01
11.01.02

Account No.
1003240000316

100001207967

2030159'l 15041

3036000004

770320000038

710325000221

Total

zo,ooo

18,110,912

13,561 ,666 638,343

78,236 76,784

374,659 362,037

137,926 1,226,305

3,897,538 4,017,379

60,887 947,609
18,110,912 7,268,'[57

I Amount in Taka

@
507,661 547;508
29,477 29A78
42.278 7t488
27.130 27,1fi

131 ,551 135,501
64,076 9t,ql9

------84.173 
8l{,'179

up to September 30,2O2O

7,268,457



11.d1.O2 Dividend A,/C
Name of Bank
lFlC Bank Ltd. Agrabad Branch, 20th Dividend A"/C
lFlC Bank Ltd- Agrabad Branch,2lst Dividend tuC
lFlC Bank Ltd. Agrabad Branch, 22nd Dividend A,rC
lFlC Bank Ltd. Agrabad Branch, 23rd Dividend tuC
lFlC Bank Ltd. Agrabad Branch, DN NC 12-13
IFIC Bank Ltd- Agrabad Branch, DN NC 13-14

11.O2 Gash in hand:
The balance as per Cash book as on 3O June, 2020

11.O3 Fixed Deposit A.ccounts (FDR):
Principal amount:
Opening balance
Add: DeposiVreinvestment made during the year
Less: EncashmenUreivestment made during the year
Closing balance (A)
Interest amount:
Opening balance
Add: Accrued interest during the year
Less: lnterest received due to encashment / other
Closing balance (B)
Total (A+B)

1 1,03.Ol

lnvestment in FDR 100% is made various
Share Capital:

Bank in Bangladesh

7,854
113,333
154,884
181,480

126,400,000
199,000,000

135,000,000 246.400.000
20,000,000 79,000,000

Account No.
2030159147-O41
2030231349-c,41
20303 t 5466-041
2030357718-041
203061 3433-041
2030700649-041

Total
Total

11.03.01

7,O24
115,972
158,971
186,494
146,439
841,682

1,456,582

_l_9f97,191_
136,429

______l-19,4?9_

79,000,000
76,000,000

1,072,303
237,80A

1,072,303
237,808

_-_nfi73o8_

1,579,325
1,O72,303
1,579,325
1,072,303

__eg{r?ngs_

12.OO
12.O1 Authorized Gapital

50,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Taka 1O/- each
12.02 Paid Up Capital:

174,109,OO ordinary shares @of Taka 10.00 each full paid up

500,000.000 500.000.000

Jz!!+ee- 174,109,000
As on June 30, 2o2o there were 10,948 shareholders of the company other tnan gctc/Gffi;ffi
a) Kinds of lssuer:
ln Cash: 'l ,889,800 shares @ Taka 10.00 each fulty paid up
Eonus: 1 ,39,10,900 shares @ Taka 10.00 each fully paid up
ln considerationotherthancash: 1,610,200 shares@Taka.lO.OOeachfullypaidup

b) The share holding position by category of Shareholders as

c) There weTe no foreign and non-resident shareholders as on 30.06.2020
d) The market price of the share of the company as on 30.06.2020 was as

Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. = TK.44.80
Chattogram Stock Exchange Ltd. = TK. 46.20

Name of Bank FDR No. Principal
(Taka) Principal (Taka)

. TJAS|(.; tsank Limited., Agrabad Branch, ctg.
:. BASIC Bank Limited., Agrabad Branch, Ctg.
i. BASIC Bank Limited., Agrabad Branch, Ctg.
.. BASIC Bank Limited., Jubliee Road Branch, Ctg.
i. AB Bank Limited., Anderkillah Branch, Ctg.
i. AB Bank Limited., Anderkillah Branch, Ctg.
'. AB Bank Limited., Anderkitlah Branch, Ctg.
. AB Bank Limited., Anderkillah Branch, Ctg.
. AB Bank Limited., Anderkillah Branch, Ctg.
0. Standard Bank Limited., Panchalish Branch,Ctg.

2
3

ti
7
o

I

001 1 856
001 1 861
oo1 1477
0006658
3588807
3s88820
3588821
3588822
3588823
200576

5,000,000
7,500,000
7,500,000

40,000,000
7,000,000
8,000,000
8,000,000
8,000,000
6,000,000
2,000,000

20,000,000 79,000,000

Particulars

2019-2020 201A-201

Share
holders

No- of
Shares

Percentage
l%)

Share
holders

No. of
Shares

Percefltage
{Y.)

8,879,5s6 51.00 8,879,556 51.00
B) lnvestment
Corporation of 6 814,688 4.68 8 803,1 46 4.61

) Fareast lslami Life 348,395 2.OO 1 348,395 2.OO
D) Other lnstitution 67 1,578,77A 9.O7 1 798,530 4.59

) General Public 10.a74 5,789,483 33.25 10941 6,581 ,273 37.A1Total 10,948 17,410,900 100 11,061 17,410,900 100

2019

I tEesaooolt 18rs8.ooo-l

I rss,roo,ooo ll r:s,ros,ooo 
I

I 16.102,000 ll 16,102,000 
|174,109,000 174J!9,099_

BCIC

1



13.00 CaPital Reserue:
OPening Balance
Less: Adjusted with fixed assets during the year

Closing Balance
14.00 General Reserue:

OPening Balance
Add: Forfeiture of Dividend Payable
Less: Adjustment made during the year
closino Balance

15.oo -oivide-nd Equalization Reserve:
OPening Balance
Add: Transferfrom P/L A'/c

Less: Transfer to Retained Earnings
Closing Balance

16.00 RevaluationReserves
OPening Balance
Deferred Tax
Depreciation on Revaluation Reseryes

17.OO RetainedEarnings:
OPening Balance
Prior Year adjustment
Cash dividend
Transfer to Bonus Share (For 2O19-2O2O )

Transfer from dividend equalization Reserve

Closing Balance after prior year adjustment
Add; Net profit / ( Loss ) after tax during the year

18.00

19.00 Govt. Loan (BMRE):
Opening Balance
Add: Transfer unpaid current position

Add: lnterest accrued during the year

Less: PaYable Within '12 Months
Glosing Balance
BreakuP:
PrinciPal
lnterest
Total

2O.OO Govt. Quasi - Equity Loan (lnterest free)
Opening Balance
Less: Paid during the Year
Closing Balance

Govt. Loan for Voluntary Retirement:

TK.l,5OO,0OOwasreceivedthroughBC|Cforvoluntaryretirementofemployeesvide
Govt. order no. o Mo/oBUBa-2/ tnlerest bearing toan (3)12OO3t282(4) dated 23106/03.

24.14A.227

----.-.-----
24.',146,227

Add: Depreciation on revaluation reserve

Cio"ing'g.hnce (Transferred to Statement of Financial Position)

Depreciation on revaluation reserve
Depreciation on revalued assets
Depreciation on cost based assets
Difference

130,135.372

lefter no MR - 2945 dated 30/06/2004

- 15135s72 

-13oi35,37L

8,359,800 24,187,890

- 15,828,090
------ 835esoo ------355Foo

1.754,628,133
2,822

(614,951)

1,754,016,004

(356,445,800)

fiseZrfroO
u25.474,976)
(481,920,776)

1g4.985,742 201,694,380
18.866.344 8,O44.731

-7l:Erzn€ 
---- 2os7:r-1r

4 329.449 4,112,975
----r1 &-jBIE55- -- rT5"85r^086

29,648,311 18'866,344--ridffifl----Tflp86xn

54,118,526 61,333,776
134 414.698 ',l33,651 ,966----7p,p,.5rs.224 194,985,742

Total amount of covernment loan (BMRE) is BDT 21g,1g1,535 which includes current Payable portion of BMRE Loan i'e'

Long Term+ Current porti." iide,ssg,224+2g,648,;ril.'-rni.|"."t charge.at^6% (Six Percent) on principal amount

(61,333,776+10,823,706) i... tot"f Tk.72,157,482 i.e interest during year tk' +,SZS'Cqg The company & respective ministry

has several coffespondences to form a policy ot ,.paymlnt .no 
-, 'sLn 

ha_s been signed on 2O.O4.2O14 for repayment of

Government Loan (BMRE). tcording to inis 5m repayment is started from fiscal year 2014-2015'

111.944,1sO 111,944,150

--- 11Ts4475o ---- 1-1T544,150

The above loan has been created out of surplus made because of revaluation of assets and liabilities at June 30' 1986'

According to the opinion of the consultant such amount is payable to Government and bears no interest' As per decision of

Board of Directors in its 13gth meeting dated 1g.11.200t, it nas been decided to pay at 20 equal installment effecting from

.January 2OO2. Bulsuch payment is deierred as per 173rd Board meeting dated 17"03.2005.

37,133,735

201930



--=j

21.OO Loan From BCIC:
Opening Balance
Add: During the year

Add: lnlerest during the year

22-OO Payable to Gratuity Fund:
Opening Balance
Add: Provision during the year

Add: Received from UGSF Gratuity fund
Payable to cratuity
Less: Paid during the year
Closing Balance

23.OO Deferred Tax Liability:
Book value of depreciable PpE ( Exctu<iing Land )
Less: Tax base W.D.V
Taxable temporary difference
Effective tax rate

Gain Tax on Land ( Revaluation )
Tax on other assets
Deferred tax liability

23.O1 Deferred Tax Expense / ( lncome ):
Closing deferred tax liabilities
Opening deferred tax Iiabilities

Revalued assets at cost
Factory Building
Residential Building
Residential & Welfare Buitding
Plant, Mac[]ineries & Equipments
Total revaluationat cost (A)

Accumulated Depreciation on revaluation
Openig Balance as on 01.07.2019
Add: Depreciatjon during the year
Total accumulated depreciation (B)

Written down value of revaluation (A-B)

Opening L)eferred tax liabilities
Closing Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred Tax Expense / ( lncome ) during the year

Depreciation on revaluation reserve
Depreciation on revalued assets

Depreciation on cost based assets
Difference

Amount in Taka

4,274,444
70,000,000l":iYi:iYa
74,274,444 4.207,169

4,207,169

Loan amount received from Bangladesh Chemical lndustries Corporatton. UGSFL Money receipt (MR) no.: g667 date:
30 OA.2O17. TK.1,345,5OO with 57o simple interest,TK. 2,aOO,OOO on MR. 7997 clate 22.O2.2O17. Non Bearing tnterest TK
50,ooo,OOO on MR 12619 date:26.o4.2O2O wrth 5?o simple interest 20,oOO,OOo(14.2983OA+1.7Oj,7oo) on N4R..l 2627.1ate
19.O5.2O2O. MR.12656 date: 18 06.2O2O with Bank rate.

657,558 _ 67,275
74.932.002 4,274.444

-u,rno,{uo

5,79(),664
s,790,qs4

182,571,167
109,938,896
72,632,271

1 8J 58p68
307,460.223

3,913,802
____9?9t12,099_

18,158,068
(22,884,169)

-____(4,7291!!_

7 ,471 .17 1

8,965,697
244,523
722.1 18

17,403,509

1,1 
'J.352

a-1{.991_
1,748.303

_ _15_!-5!J0j
3 I lfi,6i23

9,:t::r11.!3-
_____},e?z_

.r t\)\)!,rJ

391-l::i'l':1-
614,951

219,O33,541
127,496.A67
91,536,674

zz"agaJ69
307,460,223

%o,7s'-i76
147 ,761 ,30A
103,036.068 I

2so/. I

25,759,017 I

307.460,223
3,916,623 4,O18,173

-__ 
337291,0 _ -____!37,2i?_JE*
22,884,169 25,759,O17

7 ,471 ,171
8,965,697

362,976

----rc=993.91u 

--]!.ozlq:3-0lq4z!_
--ii€l-q,9?L

101 ,850

37 648 425 30,965.426

36,878,049

__;_
4,O18,473

@,o1a,4731

770,376
30,602,450

362,976

Deferred tax income of 2017-2018: Taka 2,680,036
Deferred tax incon-re of 2O17-2O18 Taka 68.40,035 which, represenis the Llocr(]ase {rf ri,?ferred lerx liabllities in 2017-20181n

co:n oarisor-r with 2.01 6-20 17 .

b. Deferred tax income of 2018-2O19: Taka 2,874,848
Derferred tax income of 2018-2019Taka ? 874,848- which, repTes.-rir1.:i the decrease ,:rf rle:ferrecJ tax liiabilities in 201g-2019 in

comoarisor"r with 20'l 7-2018.

c. Beferrecl tax income of 2019-2O2O: Taka 4,726,101
Dtt'lerred tax income of 2A19-2020 f aka 47,26,1oi which, reprcsr.-.nisi tire, ,lecrease cf cleferred tax liab lities in 2019-2O2A in

cornl-rarison with 201 8-201 9.

d" Eller:tivelncomeTar(ratehasbeenconsideredasapplicabler:,:n rer,rrt,r,y'ei,lrforthes.riCComcany.

(25.759.O17 ) (32.599.052)
_____J2.811.8!9! _______19.94! frl1

7 ,47 1 ,171
8,965,697

16,436,868 16,436,868

i62,976
__ 779_,3J6 __qq?,e76

1,133,352



Creditors for Goods SuPPlied:
Raw Materials A./C ( lmport )
Chittagong Urea Fertilizer Ltd. ( CUFL )
Kazal & Brothers
GETCO
Eastern Tubes Ltd.
Eastern Cables
Mohammad Elias Brothers
Bengal Trading Corporation
Deen Mohammad & Brothers
Linde(BD.)Ltd.
Abraham linkon
Karnaphuli Paper Mills ltd.
Mostafa Enterprise
KYCR Coil lndustries Limited
Kamal & Brothers
oxford Art Press
Rahima Afrooz
Officers Staff & Workers (Uniform)
Amena Paper House, ctg
SBM
Kamrabad stationery
A. C Bazar
Gazi Wires
Bangla Trac Ltd.
Badri Mills Store
Muntasir Mamun xEN (Mech.)
Asian Paints
Computer Village
UGSFL KSSL
M/s.Shah Amanat Trading
M/s.Bangladesh Lamp
M.Bearing
M/s.Hume Ent.
Key on Machinery
Rupali agency
Hasib Ent.

, 143'574
40,736
17,357
13,260

.34,.110

432.6.s7

32,OOO

300,345
7,100
2,AAO

ao,400

672,;20
32,24O

44,276

-

75,263

ao, r ao

:

:

34,000
1 10,000
20,oo0

191,363
11,736,120

24A,242
1,696,751

10,433,454
7,740

1 2,1 50
14,955
83,834
36,086
6,770
2,44O

82,060
11,664
18,630
24,321

8,725
26,707

Alhaj Syed Furniture Mart
Mark Engineers
Kh.Saiful Haque AE.
Transcom Dist.Ltd.
Total
Subsequently Taka 7o5,2OO

Creditor for Expenses:
Nasir&Co.&Others
M/s. khan wahab Shafiqur Rahman & Co.
M/s. S.Ahmed & Co.
Bangladesh Power Development Board
Karnafully Gas Distribution Co. Ltd
UGSF Karmachari Samabay Samitee Ltd.
Bonus Payable A"/C
Wages & Salary Clearing A,/C
Md. Manjurul Haque
CDBL Annual fees
The Daily Purbokone
The Daily Jugantor
East End Automobiles
T&TBiII
Postag€
Mowla Builders
The Daily Kaler khonto
Amder somoy
The Daily Star
The Daily Suprabatar
The Daily Sun
Hasanuzzaman R.S. (Admin)
Wasa bill
Laboni Corporation
lnfinite CNG station
Mukti Traders
Rafiqul lslam (Newspaper)
Sharebazar Dot Com
Mr.Nazrul lslam
Othor Parties
Total

66,427
17,493
9,375
5,OOO

23,'191

SubsequentlyTaka4,562,360 wererealised/adjustedoutofabovebalanceTaka25,106,226uptoSeptember30,2020.

21,259

30

1 .160,246
40,736
17,357
13,260
34,1 10
72.300

432.697
s9.204
40.352
21,056

3,100
32.OOO

300.3a5
7,100
2.8AO

ao,400
255,1?A

63,aOO

oe,iao
50,647
23,040
1 A,1 90
3,103

30,464
64.641

192.145
64,146
1 3,1 61
4.aoo

330,859
36,300

:
178,688 181,308

25,106,226 39,363,130

34,000
1 10,000

15.OOO
171,266

11 ,A81,377
837,351

I,S29,004
16.973.286

7,740
3,OOO
9,a74

25,561
5,288

234,918
18,630

177,OOO
11,219
18,000
55,196
64,112



Creditors for Other Finance:
Earnest Money ( Contractor & Supplier )

Security Money ( Dealers )
lncome Tax Deduction from suppliers & Contractor
Vat Deduction from Suppliers & Contractor
P. F Contribution Employees
P. F Contribution Employers
P.F Loan Recovery
UGSF Welfare Fund
House Building Loan
WPPF Loan Recovery Account
UGSF Karmachary Samabay Samitee Ltd.
UGSF Karmakartta Kallayan Samitee
UGSF Sramik Karmachary Union Subscription
Others Project ( W. F., WPPF, Others )
Govt. Revenue Stamp
lncome Tax on Salary
Payable to Employees (Audit Obj. O.T. Uniform & Others)
lncome Tax on sales Commission
Advance Receipts from Customers
Others
Total

381,722 379,227----75J 66p& ------NIII344

4,434,943
2,187 ,117
1,548,704
1,462,692

771,887
2,459,430
4,187,951

77,831
57,162

'188,873

73"t ,685
32,714

1,643
40,014
7,550

687,360
5, 187,595

76,000
644,090

2,145,686
2,391,201
1 ,1 91 ,888
2,808,336
1,253,993

9,104,442
2,187,1 18
1,510.015
1,448,784
1,153,713
2,864,27e
1,804,842

90,028
67"662

339,476
510,120
32,382

1.730
40,014
17,660

154,514
5,134,035

214,632
1.326,011

2,145,686
2,391,201
1 , 191 ,888
2,808,336
1,253,9S3

_SubsequentlyTaka'1,545,188 wererealised/adjustedoutof abovebalanceTaka25,'166,963uptoSeptember30,2O2O.
27 -00 Dividend Payable:

20th Dividend tuC ( 2006-07 )
21st Dividend tuC ( 2007-08 )
22nd Dividend tuC ( 2008-09 )
23rd Dividend A/C ( 2009-10 )
Dividend NC (2012-13 )
Dividend NC ( 2013-14 )

Movement:
Opening Balance
Add: Added during the year
Less: Paid during the year

Current
Previous

Less: Pard during the year ( Transfer to general reserve )
Total

BCIC Current Account:
Opening Balance
Less : Transferred from BCIC Current Account ( Asset )

Less: Transfer/Paid During the year

Add: For lmport of Raw Materials and Others
Closing Balance

12,251,422 11,460,036

2,333,674

29.00 Current Account with BGIC Enterprises:

Sylhet pulp & Paper Mitt,Sylhet
TSP Complex Ltd ,Chattogram
Karnaphuli paper Mill Ltd.
Natural Gas Fertlizer Ltd,Sylhet
Khulna News paper Mill Ltd.Khulna
Jamuna Fertilizer Co. Ltd,Jamalpur
Ashugonj Fertilizer & Chemical C0. Ltd,
North Bengal Paper Mill
DAP Fertilizer Co. Ltd, Chattogram
Polash Urea Ferilizer Ltd.Norsingdi
Shahjalal Fertilizer Co.Ltd,sylhet

2.460,318 2,460,318
12,251,422 12,251,422

- 791.386

------12,@

1,755,978 2,333,674

14,268,996
16,602,670

22,549,017 14,846,692

___q - 89 4 -99E_ _______EIllL

4,387
90,492

117,698
79,066
8,095

1 18,813
246,127

4,976
12,284
16,624
54,885

4,387
90,492

111,946
79,066
8,095

88,025
246,127

4,976
2,000
9,424

54,885
753,447

I

mount in Take
30 June- !0 ll 30 June. 2019



30.00

31.00

32.00

Provision for C.P.P.F:

Opening Balance
Add: During the year

Less: Paid During the year

Closing Balance

Govt. Loan ( BMRE ):
Opening Balance
Less: Paid during the year

Less: unpaid during the year

Add: Current Portion Payable with 12 Months

Closing Balance

Breakup:
Principal
lnterest
Total
Provision for lncome Tax:
Opening Balance
Add: Current Tax 32.01

Less: Adjustment for the assessment year (2019 - 2020\

Add: Gain Tax on Land

Gain Tax on Other Assets

Total Gain on Revaluation SurPlus

Closing Balance

32.01 Current Tax:
Sales revenue ( Net )
Other / Misc. lncome
Total Received

Minimum Tax @ 0.60%

As publicly Traded company in terms of lncome tax ordinance 1984 as per Section

tax @ 0.60% on Gross receiPts.

33.00 Sales ( Gross ):

34.00

35.00

VAT:

Sales Commission / Discount:

Commission
Truck Fare

The above amount represents commission & Truck fare. Truck fare has been provided at different slab

a(ea I

(il 322t1Board Meeting Dated 29.10.2018 & 325th Board Meeting Dated 30.01.2019,9.5o/o & Extra 10.000/,01.11'2018to

31.01.2019 & 01.02.2019 to 31.07.201 9.

(i11 323th Board Meeting Da1ed27.08.2019 & 330th Board Meeting Dated 11.12.20'19 effect 01 July, 2019 to 31.10.2019'

5.0% &7% 31.12.2019 to 31.01.2020

(iii) 33zh Board Meeting & Dated 24.02.2020 EttectT.0oo/o & Extra 3% &5o/o31.05.2020.

(iv) 333th Board Meeting & Dated 21.06.20 Effect 10.00% & Extra 10.00Yo31.10.2020 &31'11.2020.

(v) COVID-19 Pandemic situation is the another reason of decresing sale of sheet glass in the Financial year 2019'2020.

336,773,306

43,926,938

49,798,378

34,419,307
15,379,071

based on different

30 2019

18,866,344 17,ffi1,322
- s,616,591--- 18366344 -**@18,866,344 8,044,731.

18,039,510 10,823,706
11,608,802 .8,042,639
29.648,311 18,866,344

--

1,528,488 2,490,221
790.946 1,52S,488

1,528,488 2,490,221
790,946 1,528,488,

307,460,223 307,460,223

128,631 ,055 243,047 ,990
3,193,229 11,700,055

131,824,284 254,748,045



il_

Cost of goods sold:
1) Variable Cost:
A) Direct Materials:
Raw Materials Gonsumed
Packing Materials Consumed
Total Direct Materiat Cost ( A )
B) Direct Labor ( Contract Labor )
C) Factory Overhead ( Variable ):
Gas ( Used For Production )
Furnace Oil / Ld Oil / Hsd Oil
Electricity / Electricity Duty
Oil and Lubricant
Spares & Accessories
Stores Consumed
Other Factory Overhead
Total Variable Faclory Overhead
Total Variable Cost (A+B+C)
2) Flxed Cost:
A) Dlrect Factory Satary & Wages

B) Factory Overhead ( Fixed ):
lndirect Salary & Wages
Repair & Maintenance

Factory lnsurance

Factory Depreciation

Other Factory Overhead

Total Fixed Factory Overhead

Total Fixed Cost ( A+B )
Total Manufacturing Cost ( 1+2 )
Add: Opening Work-ln-Process
Total Goods ln Process
Less: Closing Work-ln-Process
Cost of Goods Manufactured
Add: Opening Stock of Finished Goods
Gost of Goods Available For Sale
Less: Closing Stock of Finished Goods
Cost of Goods Sold

36.01 Raw Materials Consumed:

36.01
36.O2

3.O2

36.03

1 37,383,363

59,797,672

8,542,525
'1 ,604,'146

663,142

36,855,232

3,428,322 3.81 1.830

51,093,367

1 10,89.t,039

76,339,759

10,905,680

1,193,864

732,O44

37,366,062

54,009,480

'r30,349,239

248,274,402 275,403,015
5,341 ,127 4.568.843

253,615,529 279,971,856
5,607,286 5,341 ,127

244,O0A,243 274,630,729
12.175,762 64,241 ,637

260,1 84,005 338,872,366
29,489,715 12.175.762

230,694,290 326,696,604

145,A53.,774

Soda Ash ( heavy )

Dolomite Stone

Lime Stone

Sodium Sulphate

Silica Sand

Coal

Feldspar

Cu llet(Purchase)
Other Handling Carrying
& Washing Charge

269.480 7,701,615

12.839 77,345

78.293 267,069

147.200 2,181,468

36.855 41,343

0.446 6,077

11 .761 '1 82,880

97.580 794,366

1499.550 46,751 ,026

1421.699 9,415,118

4220.069 3,883,040

22.570 3.16,343

497.646 15,257,756

457.723 3,028,793

24.596 83,909

22.313 331,475

257.054 236,973

11.524 161 ,877

3.017 46,913

97.580 794,366

1,271.384

976.815

53.697

124.887

3,999.870

11.492

8.744

42,046,323

6,463,669

't83,160

1,855,281

3,687,410

160,543

't35,967

1,865,651

6.05

6.06

201 8-201 9

Particulars
lnce Closino Balance

Qty (M.r) I Value (Tk) aty (M.T) I Value (Tk) Oty (M.T) I value (rk) Oty (M.r) I Value (rk)



-r@,*Lffi
36.02 PhGking Materials Consumed:

Dry Grass(MT)

Old Newsprint(k.G)
Corrugated Sheet
(pieces)

6.620 43,016 51 .43 277 ,711

114J08 4010.00

249,983 18227.00

103,939 641.00

772,893 5865.00

2.048 11,059

15,635

266,667

56.00 309,668

7760.00 202,412

19447.00 756,210

4391.00

7085.00

Total 407fi71 1,154,543 293,361 1,268,290

36.03 Other Factory Overhead: (Fixed)
Uniform & Liveries
Medical Expenses
TA/DA & Conveyance
Rent, Rates & Taxes
Canteen Subsidy
Compensatory Refreshment
Printing & Stationery
Telephone & Trunk Call
Vehicle Running Expenses
Entertainment

37.O0 GeneralAdministrative Expenses:
Salaries & Allowances (Admin)
Advertisement / Press Notice
Rent & Taxes
Ceremonial Expenses
Company Board Meeting fees
Company Board Meeting Expenses
Subscription / Licence Fees
Club Expenses
Depreciation
Entertainment
Gardening Expenses
Games, Sport & Picnic
lnsurance Premium
Legal & Professional fees
Uniforms & Liveries
Medical Expenses
Mosque Expenses
Other Admin Expenses
Newspaper & Magazine
Printing & Stationery
Postage & Telegram
Prize Award Honorariunr
Repairs & Maintenance ( Office )
Sanitation Expenses
Scholarship & Grants
Travelling & Conveyance
Telephone, Fax & lnternet charge
Training Expenses
Vehicle Repair & Maintenance
Vehicle Tax
Vehicle Running Expenses
UGSF A.G.M Expenses
Officer mess subsidy
Gas Bill ( Canteen & Mess )
UGSF Welfare Fund
Audit Fee
Fire Fitting & Extinguish
Guest House
Death Compensation
Annual Fee ( DSE, CSE, CDBL & BAPLC )
CDBL Programme Expenses
Bonus Share lssue Expenses
Webslte Expenses
ICT

Mujib 1 OOyear celebration
TOTAL:

663,424
149,643
174,212
61 1,974
216,OOO

1,O91,931
94,693
20,215

323,230

613.471
211,9.4c^
244,742
630,420
216,OO0

1.194,72A
117,44A
22344

49A.152
75.OOO__ag?

12,A13,787
453,796

159.691
472,AOO
426,O93

50,900
3,600

185,669
171 ,573

a,o10
303,667
215,449

6,OOO
22,500

119,594
3,510

17,704
49,451
63,299
20,329

120,550
4,602

15,127
15,224

51a,765
54,102
7,365

161,OO3
44,294

209,859
465,417
50,ooo

221,397
32,OOO

'130,OOO
6,922
5,760

664,560
107,499
a6,ooo
97,450
55,400

29.474--------iE675306-

16.35a.520
51'1.7s5

45,691
193,O00
958,750
6,52.A4A
36,563
6.150

1AA,242
122.192

6.444
390,O00
237,A35
251,1e7
90,ooo

136,570
4,OOO
7,050

48,715
65,OOO
2a332

412,6,A0
40,691
49,456
34,295

76s,575
66.5a3
39,937

210.339
31 ,777

154.820
592,75c.
60,ooo

138,A63
50.ooo

140,000
11,960
13,619

767,70io-
327,769
ao.oo0

122,627
a2,750
80,ooo

_________Et€92,939_



38.00 BCIC Management Expenses Levy:
During the year Taka 528,000 has been provided for BCIC Levy which is

39.00 Selling and Distribution Expenses:
Salary & Allowance
Sales Promotion
Advertisements
TAJDA & Conveyance
Vehicle Running & Maintenance Expenses
Medical Expenses
Printing & Stationery
Telephone & Trunk call

Entertainment Expenses
Uniform & Liveries
Insurance

Depreciation
Training Expenses
TOTAL:

40.00 Other lncome:
lnterest on Fixed Deposit Receipts ( FDR )

lnterest on STD Accounts
lnterest of Dividend AJC

Fine, Compensation and Forfeiture
Sundry lncome
Sale of Wastage / Scrap
Sale of Tender Form

41.00 lnterest & Other Financial Expenses:
Bank Charges
lnterest on Govt. Loan ( BMRE )
Excise Duty
lnterest on BCIC Loan & Other

42.00 (a) Earning Per Share (EPS)-Basic :

Net profit /(Loss) for the year

Number of Shares
Earning per Share

(b) Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (NOCFPS) ;

Net Cash Flow from operating activities
Number of Shares
Net Operating Cash Flow per Share

(c) Net Assets Value (NAV) :

Net assets Value
Number of Shares
Net Assets Value per Share

4,271,262
101,012

167,366

103,304
223,157

25,929

98,694

23,908

100,000

16,500

81,094
92,834
10,000

___q,319,999_

2,517,302
307,765

57,898
175,580

14,446

94,838
25,400

____1,1e314_

23,212
4,329,449

91,600
657,558

___1QLq9_

(125,474,976)
17,410,900

(7.21l.

(102,603,4s6)

17,410,900
(5.8e)

1,609,460,578

17,410,900

92.45

]a:.at-t:.:==::4,::::.=, ,,:

Budget.

1

I

5A52g0
440,766

274,243
112,215
233,739

41,179

113,333

24,808

91,855

22,700
89,519
94,121

27,262
4,112,975

197,000

88,709

(108,203,593)

17,410,900
(6.21)

(18,438,174)

17,410,900
(1.06)

1,734,932,732
17,410,900

99.65



43.00-Ei{uisites to Directors and Officers:
i) Directors who attend in the meeting held outside the city of their residence, were entitled to get TA/DA at the
rate of TK.15,000 from 273th Board meeting dt. 06.03.2014. Directors were entitled at the rate of TK. 2,000 as
entertainment and Tk. 5,000 as Board meeting participation fee from 276th Board meeting dt. 29.05.2014 for
attending each Board Meeting. During the year 2019-2020 a tota! number of 06 (SlX) normal Board meetings
& No special meeting were held.

ii) No other compensation was allowed by the company to Managing Director, who is also a Director of the
company except salary & other allowances and board meeting fee & allowances as stated above.

iii) No amount of money was spent by the company for compensating any member of the board for special
service rendered for the company

iv) The company provides the following perquisites for its officers:

Particulars
Housing
Washing
Medical
Food & Conveyance
Heat, Shift & Night allowance
Education Allowances
Charge Allowances

2019-2020 2018-2019
5,285,330

40,200
618,871
693,400

'15,400

160,790
55,500

5,387,018
37,350

629,881
868,800

13,955
133,501
71,596

2018-2019
M.Ton

44.00 Production Capacity, Target and Actual Production and Sales (2MM Basis):
2019-2020

Sft M.TonParticular
Production Capacity
Target Production
Actual Production
Favorable/(U nfavorable)
Target Sales
Actual Sales
Sales Variance - Favorable /
(Unfavorable)

45.00 Liabilities Against VAT:

20,100,000
14,s00,000
10,968,700
(3,s31,300)

14,500,000
9,289,493

(5,210,507)

9,305.556
6,712.963
5,078.102

(1,6ij4.861)

6,712.963
4,300.691

(2,412.272)

20,100,000
14,500,000
15,387,3s2

887,352
14,500,000

18,906,546

4,406,546

2019-202A
469,500

4,500

9,305.556
6,712.963
7,123.774

410.811

6,712.963
8,753.031

2,040.068

201 8-201 I
460,725

5,282

There is a Liabilities against VAT for an amounting to Tk. 3,661,044 against VAT rebate against Bakhrabad Gas

bill in '1996-97 of which VAT authority claimed the amount. The company made an appeal to the VAT appellate

authority. But the judgment made against the company. Thereafter, the Company filed a writ petition to appellate

tribunal of honorable High court, which is now under jurisdiction.

46.00 Events After Reporting Period:
The Board of Directors of Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Limited in its Board meeting held on 29.10.2020, 335th

Meeting has not recommended any Dividend for the financial year 2019-2020 to the share holders.

47.00 Foreign Currency (s) Expenditure:
During the year Company expended the following foreign currency (s) on C&F basis for the procurement of raw
materials, stores, spare & accessories.

Name of Currency
US ($)
EURO (€)

During the year no fluctuation gain/loss has been happened due to to the foreign currency transaction. The
company has imported material by openig L/C through Bank & foreign payment as per exchnge rate.



zt8_{$-Re I ate d Pa rty D i s c I os u res :
During the year, the company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in ihe normal course
of business and on an arm length basis. The name of these related parties nature of transactions with the
provision of IAS 24 : Related Party Dlsclosures are presented below:

Relationship Nature of
Transactions

Transaction
during the year

Balance as on 30
June,2020

Chhatak Cement Factory Ltd. Sister Concern Lime Stone

Bangladesh lnsulator &
Sanitaryware Factorv Ltd.

Sister Concern Refractory
Bricks

49.00 Key Personnel of UGSFL, their remuneration & Compensation :

A) As per rule, The company provides transport facility by Car to Managing Director for using official purpose
& Unlimited telephone facility. Company secretary entitled a honorium of Tk. 4,000 (Four thousand) for
attending company's Board Meetting.

B) Key Management Expenses:
1. Short-term Benefit: Only Managing Director & Others Departmental Head got regular salary & allowances
as per BCIC & Govt. rules.

2. Post-Employee Benefit: Only Managing Director & Others Departmental Head got Gratuity/Pension &
Provident Fund Benefit.

3. Termination Benefits: As per Govt. Rules & BCIC Rules.
4. No Other Long-term Benefit & Share-Based payment benefit.
lf there any Govt. Gazette is published benfeit are paying as per rules.

SL.
No Name of Officer Designation

1 Mr. Engr. Bidyut Kumar Biswas Managing Director

2 Mr. Mohammad Shohrab Hossain
Deputy Chief Chemist
&
Head of Operation

3 Mr. Mohammad Shoayeb
Manager (Commercial)
&
Head of Purchase

4 Mr. Md. Abdur Rashid
Deputy Chief Engineer (Elect.)
&
Head of MTS

5 Mr. Mohammad Masudul Alam
Manager (Admin.)
&
Head of Administration

6 Mr. Md. Shahdat Hossain
Deputy Chief Accountant
&
Head of Accounts/Company Secretary/CFO

7 Mr. Md. Al Amin Munsi
Executive Engineer (Chemical.)
&

Head of Sale

r-t
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43.00-T6{uisites to Directors and Officers:

i) Directors who attend in the meeting held outside the city of their residence, were entitled to get TA/DA at the
rate of TK.15,OOO from 273th Board meeting dt. 06.03.2014. Directors were entitled at the rate of TK. 2,000 as

entertainment and Tk. 5,000 as Board meeting participation fee from 276th Board meeting dt. 29.05.2014 for
attending each Board Meeting. During the year 2019-2020 a total number of 06 (SlX) normal Board meetings
& No special meeting were held.

ii) No other compensation was allowed by the company to Managing Director, who is also a Director of the

company except salary & other allowances and board meeting fee & allowances as stated above.

iii) No amount of money was spent by the company for compensating any member of the board for special
service rendered for the company

iv) The company provides the following perquisites for its officers:

Particulars
Housing
Washing
Medical
Food & Conveyance
Heat, Shift & Night allowance
Education Allowances
Charge Allowances

44.00 Production Gapacity, Target and Actual Production and Sales (2MM Basis):
2019-2020

Sft M.Ton

2019-2020 2018-2019
5,285,330

40,200
618,871
693,400

15,400
160,790
55,500

5,387,018
37,350

629,881
868,800

't3,955
133,501
71,596

2018-2019
Sfr M.TonParticular

Production Capacity

Target Production
Actual Production

Favorable/(U nfavorable)

Target Sales

Actual Sales
Sales Variance - Favorable /
(Unfavorable)

20,100,000 9,305.556

14,500,000 6,712.963
10,968,700 5,078.102
(3,531,300) (1,634.861)

14,500,000 6,712.963

9,289,493 4,300.691

(5,210,507) (2,412.272)

20,100,000
14,500,000
15,387,352

887,352
14,500,000
18,906,546

4,406,546

2019-2020
469,500

4,500

9,305.556
6,712.963
7,123.774

410.81 1

6,712.963
8,753.031

2,040.068

2018-2019
460,725

5,282

45.00 Liabilities Against VAT:
There is a Liabilities against VAT for an amounting to Tk. 3,661,044 against VAT rebate against Bakhrabad Gas

bill in 1996-97 of which VAT authority claimed the amount. The company made an appeal to the VAT appellate

authority. But the judgment made against the company. Thereafter, the Company filed a writ petition to appellate

tribunal of honorable High court, which is now under jurisdiction.

46.00 Events After Reporting Period:
The Board of Directors of Usmania Glass Sheet Factory Limited in its Board meeting held on 29.10.2020, 335th

Meeting has not recommended any Dividend for the financial year 2019-2020 to the share holders.

47.00 Foreign Currency (s) Expenditure:
During the year Company expended the following foreign currency (s) on C&F basis for the procurement of raw
materials, stores, spare & accessories.

Name of Currency
US ($)
EURo (€)

During the year no fluctuation gainiloss has been happened due to to the foreign currency transaction. The
company has imported material by openig L/C through Bank & foreign payment as per exchnge rate.
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50.00-:Tg+rnology used in the factory is the oldest & outdated with compared to much more improved present

modern technology in the world not to speak our country alone. Due to non marketablity of this. old

technology product added with higher cost of production due to old and worn out machineries & Equipments

this factory is incurring huge operational loss both in current as well as last few years. COVID-19 Pandemic

situation is another reason of huge oprational loss in the Financial year 2019-20. During the period (April

fr20loJune 202O) the company produces sheet glass 2.10lacsft against production target of 36.80 lac sft

Subsequently sales of sheet glass (April 2020 to June 2020) 8.58 lac sft against sales target of 36.80 lac sft.

Beside this Govt. increased industrial gas bill by 38% & captive power by 44o/owilh compare to previous year

So, the loss increases drastically. To overcome the existing loss condition of the factory management has

taken a plan to replace the old technology production by a modern technology production process.The

company was decided to implement a more viable container glass plant within next two years. As part of its

implementation a tender is in process (Negotiation stage) to select a firm for Market survey & Economic

feasibility study. Hopefully within few rnonth the selection process will be completed & selected firm will start

the survey works within stipulatd time which will take over the existing facilities as much as possible.

51.00 Total anear wages Tk. 32,602,290 out of which Tk.22,526,381 paid/adjusted in the Financial year 2018-

2019 & Tk.7,003,031 was paid in the Financial year 2019-2020. The rest outstanding balance stand Tk.

3,072,878 which will be paid/adjusted next financialyear.

52.00 Designed capacity of Furnance-1 is 6,700,000 sft (2 m.m. basis) & Furnace-2 is 13,400,000 sft (2 m.m.

basis). ln the year 2019-2A, the poduction target of Furnace-2 was revised by the Board of Director

14,500,000 sft (2 m.m. basis). ln this FY UGSFL produced 10,968,700 sft (2 m.m basis) sheet glass against

target of 14,500,000 sft (2 m.m basis) and sold 9,289,493 sft ( 2 m.m basis) sheet glass against sale target

of '14,500,000 sft due to wordwide situatian of COVID-19 Pandemic whole country was lockdown from

25.03.2020 to 30.05.2020, So production was stopped and sales was abnormally slow, So that it was unable

to achive target.

53.00 Deviation of EPS, Net operating Cash flows per share (NOCFPS)

a) During the year, EPS not restated because of Number of shares are unchanged cornapre to the previous

year & No stoek dividend was decleared by Company.

b) Due to huge operatingj loss of the year 2019-2020 the Net Asset Value (NAVP) are decreased from Tk.

99.65 to Tk. 92.45.

c) During the Financial year 2019-20 Net sales decreases with compare to previous year by Tk. 114,416,935.

Worldwide COVID-19 Pandemic is the main reason for decrease of sale abnormally. On the other hand other

income also decreases by Tk. 8,506,826 compare to previous year. So NOCFS is decreases.

t-t
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54+O- CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AGTIVITIES UNDER INDIREGT METHOD;

2018-2019
Taka

Profit after Provision for lncome Tax
Add: Non Cash Charges
Depreciation during the year
Amortization of Goodwill
Deferred Tax
Prior year adjustment
lnterest on Govt. Loan ( BMRE )
lnterest on BCIC Loan & Other
A

Chanqes in Workinq Capital

lncrease/(Decrease) in lnventory

lncrease/(Decrease) BCIC Current Accounts
lncrease/(Decrease) Current Account With BCIC Enterprises
I ncrease/(Decrease) Accou nts Receivable

I ncrease/(Decrease) Advance deposit & prepayment

lncrease/(Decrease) Accounts payable/ Creditors for Goods
I ncrease/(Decrease) Creditor for Expenditu re.

lncrease/(Decrease) Creditor for other Finance
BCIC CurrentAccounts

lncrease/(Decrease) Current Account With BCIC Enterprises
lncrease/(Decrease) Provision For lncome Tax
B
Net cash inflows/ (outflows) from operating activities (A+B)

f>awea.-_
Direcior

(87,168,485) (100,938,772)

(125,474,976)

37,133,735
911,850

(4,726,10_1)

4,329,449
657,558

(108,203,593)

37,648,425
911,850

(2,874,848)
(32,602,290)

4,112,975
68,709

N4maging Director

(1e,530,876)

2,851,438
(1,172,292)

(130,1 86)

(1,990,213)

(14,2s6,904)

(3,017,681)

22,495,261

54,024

59,544,602

5,g54,4-01

(744,660)

13,671,863

5,036,125

.4=--V--V
Director-

(737,542) (e61,733)
(15,434,9711 82.500.5s8

G-L



- -'6 
d

-- t-1-- J
- l-l *3|lslrll
s s.lEl m gl
5 al +l = rllr- t_t6 d-lt 

I
.ll

ltillti
g E]E €]s lsl a d

l-l

i

E slEls $
N lal *l

tl q
rl
l'li'
ri

E slgs 3l3 sl Ela dla- 
-Ia -NNi d

ir "tllli

illl

=t
I

P

I
I

l

I
I
l

E. ts]E]E Hi€ atats gl* l=l:-s

ill
lil-il-fl

ilil
*1uq

5 Hl 
=lE 

EEqHFEsqsEesB=Ht*t3 3 EIE e:esEEqssEEEsai{"1H1

E $] 
gE SEEEErFE*$;EggE]F]- =j =lF -- -asBd !- .=]fl

^SIE B P H E F E E S; F 
= 

E S E EIEIFIH F, s s: i-S E g- e . ; = 
r E " ;]5'i

I =-- I:flill
E]! E E P E E S S E E E 5 E E E BEI
_ElE H E B F E E F F E s I R F;5]E'lsl R -83=N N- ;*"1 i*ir;=i

FEEFSE+es€HEsp
EEEERS,AEEEERF;

e6h6r r o

oo-.i

ESFSgEHEE=:<;bSEiE€EEEAH}<BE
SSg]N *- ;_

ll

l1

, g.FE 
ifl-

BI

-tdl
JJ- J 6l

=BH 
S E=d.E - e E o

#eH*H",,863i8" H tr * *HEH, E

EaEEgEE= 

"E$EHE 

$EgEc EEE Ec EE-$E $

H. gE

d

ii
I

I

I

--l
l

I
i

8tst

l

I

I

E
€q
E
E

=EE*+
EE6r-s€
s! o--a
LLd

6A A5eE\g=9
3 E e;s € =E! 6 d=g*EE,
E E EE
b I .El:

E g gE
B E BE; E EEE f, 5=q{FH
E E EE
E 5 X8T E 3U
E S gS
E { IEgkF=
-E E FEe:ra

E E Eg
E $ RE!. I .{-EEEE

- #,.i $EE T E;iE
'--!J!6E-E.TTrgEEI

'i'l
]Ittll

l-ltl

al ar

-l 
=.],llttilil

t1

&* s

E AR E
e 66 EHBSE
9i dd d
6i

,8,
lr

llI

$s$fls

1B 
F$EEEH$FEE$=**1q

Eb
EEigrSg
E$$g.=EEE
ES- $
G^A66

fra
*E

(,
z
o
8sF>t;?ooI-oF-{g
IC,

PH
-o

<,e
Yt
OE
FEIJ=
>+tr-o
9H
b=
,.< iF#
IrJ --urItir(/,H
o9otr
1to5
<ez#
gH 

Ialrl

,"--@-L

effi



@ $ri<.| {elT re<l q'ffi qrRE 6{TkrqrgKfi?-< 6?.?fl {kE r

qrd'{tgT Glql{q q'mE €R-t{r<
frg {( ' )lo)b\gooolo)8svq

- sfr< qremh cfi{ft
FIg ;r( : )go)bEooSCbSsCoo

c+rs qi{qqr
re-frrg q(, €oorlqor:

+rxrq g1t_f,.qRIEq
frs ai, )lo)b\9oo) q)8 q8 5e

ffi{"<A-r
fre 4( ' 5\o)Esooooqoslsl

o-rs xffir -nrlrr
l<3 dR : ))oCgooooolO598i

*

ffil 3rr{,Hr{C{ftT{
fre r( , )lo)cboo)bb88glb



lmt-rfiT seET <rfrs qT{mt qsm cct'H qrE tnsrt<;e
ixtqffT emqls 6url-?Frit{ E-{l-{ (rl: qrft+ uq qiqffi, cotqTft i

€tr qfiEe-qq- s mt*itft q6{TqqdrFrq-{ cn+r{re r 
.J

i mlqtq< rrrrur {fra flll-<t caR qlE axtfto r"mmr"erem 1m<]i-
lErtrrlT {Fril-T emEts cDTkTiF q-{K mfe qlfri B{ qEqlT ersqr 

i

,,TIr?Ti TFr(Ea

' 661v9fttr rrgBr <{e F"--?r' ;=:? =3-r >q,lilg rrm-Tr{l€K
Bmrf 6ol-rTii F:? ,=-i- o'-=z ETT{ GTs a$Gs

I Ts-<Tdl{ru;r\_-

$rrl
eqllqj

j

1.."**..*l
i cot*ttft ffi-< wm c{'ls .tRlq-ls cqlcqr. ,e,eE{ <tfro qI${"| q-sf{ 

I

lffi t5-r*e{ r

@rfi< 'r'rs-q 
<lffis ctqEH qq-{ qTFFI{IT q=IF[ c{Is {",fr"j

[:' 
fi-{rfrerffi (qEtr'ec) € q-d]-dlTE{+-szlrr{ *** 

J

:l



ffiSlirfib+rr?ftfu
effiqfrre

61-qffiDtriq qql,6t

c?tta Efqufl\e, fr1a- sq)q I

EfrF<'rl'
crKKrqr€rcffi Tfr€/G\€ R 6.Hl-[.<{ {(?m

qIRffi
6"sr-{T

ffi SH fib FrtEft fre e{ q$-qT emmr{-€i< RrlT ,4gqt<t q-{K / q-fiil

erffrrm<
+'fus/fts rR

6-swt

ia &c{s'{, toto Rs TflC{K, rzFlq )o.iso EfrslT sffrH {qtlsTo \tr{lt-g<i E"rc{ls cs't' Itfi-{ e3\5q <lffT
{I{Kct qsH q<\ vqr<-<Gf 6{ 6r{ {-Nt qsH qqKFFfiffiT effr tcrycu EqRg 6q15q q'qK/WcqT "tm' etB
{ql"r T-{K q-lr fr6nFt s-sfi{ r

qqr """""" a.o\o Rs \qft"f qlfrffiqeqfr6qE-q,tffiE1'5F{sf,{l-{ 
I

6rm|g6q|€fK{TIs-{
+frslfre x.
()o.oo Effir 6ffi8 6Fa qr1.@ s-fl{)

c+tb a

+) qq-s 'ilsr crlE [fr'{ c<ffiNf qftfiq16fti5qqilqlt?m{qtc{frq c]f$rgEr< I

ci) er& s<Tq{.Bt )o.oo Elsffr 68fr6sil'Dr{g{Fqr< r

't) 
q-or< fr(rRg q'{cirr sqqrs 8b (qtDBT) q.tT "tr( qS +-<q 66p1fr-a 6{ffi qfrrq qeKr Q-6{Qa frs'|-ql{ ,

info@,ugsflbd.com yql{f shakerwat.bim8989@gmail.com qeR[ ugsflmd@gmail.com ceF6l $-{cg qr< 
I

ffisd1,fiEert=-ftfrs
c.Htf,cqrslc{f, el&.-fi E1-

qrfrfsta-{t qgql-<t qql' \s &ffi{K, toto Rs g*tG<t<, {o]a[ )o.\eo str$]T {Bsm sQfu"r ffifus qq6-s-<r

ffifl $H ftB flBft fra q< ,eaEr {tffiT ct{K"i rrq-T q{K/ \Tm4?-{ G{R&T {l-sj'flFm s-tr{|.{ I

+hs/fre a(

frF
rv'l'sqq.Ef+rflft et{l-{r{€l{<t effrrs .{ qffiE{tr t{cfFr{ 6sl"'[fu m&]tdqftmqaFTb'rrfrfrEFlg
t-x{q{ ffFFtT qqt/cem q{F qr{ 

r



I

MSryqb*I*frfre
o.EnttBFIE qef+l

DUeIN I

\: .,1.

B


